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Chartered Accountants Teynampet, Chennai 600018, INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of Naga Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Naga Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023,
profit, comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Director's Report along with annexures but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relev o-the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an ayditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure C".

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements - Refer Note no 45 to the standalone financial statements;

if. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iti. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed
in note no 59 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

L}

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed
in note no 59 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parties),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this
audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance
with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
accounts using accounting software containing feature of recording audit trail facility is
applicable for the Company with effect from April 01, 2023. Accordingly, reporting under
this clause is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar

Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVM2990

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26,2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NAGA LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVMZ990

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26,2023
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF NAGA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent Auditors’
Report]

i,
(a) A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including guantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment property and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

L ]

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has a programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by
which property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee,
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its property, plant
and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or pending against
the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended
and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

ii.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the frequency
of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in aggregate from
Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns / statements are
filed with such Banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account.

iii.
(a) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not, provided any guarantee or
security, or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly provisions of (iii) (a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation provided to us, Company has made investments during the
year which in our opinion is not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii)(c-f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither, directly or indirectly,
granted any loan, or provided guarantee or security to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the
director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act nor made investments through
more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.

~Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

\
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vi.

vii.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public including amounts deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly provisions of clause (v) is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant Rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and we are of the opinion that
prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made
a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in

our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been
a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, duty of custom, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, dues

relating to Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, cess or other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

viii.

ix.
(a)

(b)

(€)

(d)

(e)

Nature of Amount Amount Period to
Name of the statute | dues Demanded Unpaid Rs. which the | Forum where dispute
Rs. crores crores amount is pending
relates
Employee Provident PF 1.22 0.91 Apr'16- Madras High Court
Fund Organization Sept’19

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not accounted in
the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessment of
the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of
account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority,

In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money raised by way of term loans
during the year have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from an any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or associates.
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(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate
companies. Hence, reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly,
or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report
that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(b) No report under subsection 12 of section 143 of Companies Act 2013 have been filed in ADT-4 as prescribed under
rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

Xii.
(a) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (2) to (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under audit.

Xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the Company has not
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and hence, provisions
of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company.

xvi,
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 xvi
(d) of the order are not applicable to the Company
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xvii.  Based on the overall review of standalone financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the
current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptiong, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

xx.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the provisions of Section
135 of the Act are applicable to the Company. The Company has met the requirements by carrying forward the
amount spent over and above the actual requirement as per the section in the previous year and there are no
unspent amounts which are required to be transferred either to a fund or to a special account as per the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with schedule VII. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xx)(a) and
Clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi.  The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the report.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVM2990

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26 ,2023
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NAGA LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Naga Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March
31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Naga Limited
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with reference to
standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the "Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar

Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVMZ2990

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26,2023
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
{ All amounts are in Croras of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 319.80 283.72
(b) Capital wark-in-progress 5 57.11 21.12
(c) Investment Property 4.b 10.89 10.27
(d) Other intangible assets 6 0.91 1.13
(e) Right-of-use assets 4.a 18.81 ¢ 7.23
(f) Financial assets
(1) Investments 7 4.29 4,20
(ii) Other financial assets 8 10.61 9.90
(2) Income tax assets (net) 9 2.36 1.24
(h) Other non-current assets 10 15.03 12.51
Total non - current assets 439.81 351.32
Current assets
(a) Inventories 1 126.71 164.47
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 12 75.34 B8.97
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents 13 2.84 2.81
(iii) Bank Balance other than (ii) above 14 5.85 4.98
(iv) Loans 15 0.86 0.90
(v) Other financial assets 16 0.37 0.94
(d) Other current assets 17 9.05 20.71
(e) Asset classified as held for sale 18 3.05 .
Total current assets 224,07 283.78
Total Assets 663,88 635.10
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 19 14.25 14.25
(b) Other equity 10 152.13 144.43
Total equity 166.38 158.68
LIABILITIES
MNon- current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 239.37 183.70
(il) Lease liability 22 6.18 -
(i1i) Other financial liability 23 2.09 2.45
(b) Long term provisions 24 3.25 2.73
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 25 15.69 14.03
Total non - current liabilities 266.58 202.91
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 26 102.31 145.59
(ii) Lease liability 22 1.59 -
(iii) Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro and small
enterprises 27 0.89 4,46
-total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro and small enterprises 27 97.47 96.59
(iv) Other financial liabilities 28 15.86 11.07
(b) Short term pravisions 24 1.40 1.04
(c) Other current liabilities 29 11.40 14.76
Total current liabilities —730.92 -
Total Liabilities 497.50 476,42
Total Equity and Liabilities 663.88 635.10
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
In terms of our report attached or and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants o \““‘1_'& 5
ICAl Firm Registration Ne—To50s
: )Q/ K.5. KAMALAKANNAN MAGESWARI KANNAN
W =~ Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN : 01601589 DIN : 0210755
GEETHA JEYAKUMZ2 . -
Partner 2 s — ,»p
Membership No: 02 e i iamtt /ﬁ
Lo T.R. SIVARAMAN BAL RUGAN
Place: Dindigul Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 26" May, 2023 Membership No : 023228 Membership No : F12312



Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores af INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

PRETICHIARS Notes * yarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Income:
| Revenue from operations 30 2,099.06 1,728.96
Il Other income 3 7.09 3.25
Il Total income (1 +11) 2,106.15 , 1,732.21
IV  Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 3z 1,771.64 1,387.27

Purchases of stock-in-trade i3 20.75 65.71

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade 34 (9.03) 19.80

Employee benefits expenses 35 74.07 55.52

Financial costs 36 34.42 29.99

Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 42.54 36.98

Other expenses 38 151.76 120.27

Total expenses 2,086.15 1,715.54
V  Profit Before Tax (Il - IV) 20.00 16.67
¥Vl  Tax Expenses / (Credit):

- Current tax 4.76 3.07

- MAT Credit recognized - (3.07)

- Deferred tax 2.23 4.31
VIl Profit for the year (V- Vl) 13.01 12.36
VIl Other comprehensive income /(loss) ltem that will not be

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined

benefit obligations (0.81) 0.27

(b) Changes in fairvalue of Investments measured at FVTQCI (0.18) -

(€) Income tax effect on above (0.25) (0.07)

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of tax (1.24) ~ 0.20
IX Total comprehensive Income for the year (VI + Vill) 11.77 12.56
X Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 39 9.13 8.67

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 39 9.13 8.67

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

In terms of our report attached

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

ﬂ& o, R~
GEETHA JEYAKUMAR

Partner
Membership No: 0294

Place: Dindigul
Date : 26" May, 20

K.S. KAMALAKANNAN
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 01601589

T.R. SIVARAMAN
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No : 023228

T‘_ -\\n_/-g\,_\__ =
MAGESWARI KANNAN
Joint Managing Director

Company Secretary
Membership No : F12312



Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for year ended March 31, 2023
{ All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 20.00 16.67

Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expenses 42,54 ' 36,98
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (4.00) 0.00
Interest income (0.80) (0.75)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances 0.91 0.60
Bad debts written off 0.11 1.05
Unrealised net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transactions and

translations 0.64 0.68
Rental income from Investment property 2.17) (1.52)
Loss on fair valuation of investments carried at FVTPL* 0.00 0.93
Finance cost 34.42 29.99
Operating profit before working capital changes TBS W
Movement in Working Capital:

(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (3.11) 0.71
Decrease in Inventories 37.77 23.89
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables 12.54 (39.98)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other assets 10.99 (9.49)
Increase in Other financial liabilities 5.76 1.43
Increase in Lease liability 7.77

(Decrease)/ Increase in Other liabilities (3.58) 8.79
(Decrease) in trade payables (3.34) (0.89)
Increase in provision for Gratuity and compensated absences 0.89 1.32
Cash Generated from operations T 157.34 T 7041
Income tax paid (net of refund) (6.28) (2.21)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 151.06 65.20
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (107.93) (66.31)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets 4.85 0.43
Advance received for Sale of land 0.56

Interest income 0.80 . 0.75
Purchase of Additional stake in merged entities (5.42) -
Purchases of Investments (0.87) (1.50)
Rental income on lease arrangements 2.17 1.52

Bank Balance not considered as cash and cash equivalents :
- Deposits matured (net) 211 . 2.17
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (103.73) (62.94)




MNaga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended March 31, 2023
{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

(A) Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of April 01, 2021 14.25
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at the end of March 31, 2022 14.25
Changes in equity share capital during the year . .
Balance at the end of March 31, 2023 14.25
(B) Other Equity
Capital
Capital | Reserve S—— General | Retained
Particulars Premium OCl | Total
Reserve |on account R Reserve | Earnings
of merger Eanre
Balance as at March 31, 2021 0.11 * 1.36 3.34 128.93 |(0.44)|133.30
Additions/ (deductions) during
the year 0.21 (0.21)
Total Comprehensive Income
for the year - - 12.36 0.20] 12.56
Dividend paid - - (1.43) (1.43)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.11 - 1.36 3.55 139.65 |(0.24) |144.43
Merger Adjustment (refer note no. 51) (2.65) (2.65)
Additions/ (deductions) during
the year 0.21 {0.21) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for
the year 13.01 | (1.24)| 11.77
Dividend paid (1.42) (1.42)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.1 (2.65) 1.36 3.76 151.03 |(1.48) (152.13

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Lo o~ R
GEETHA JEYAKUMAR

Partner
Membership No: 029409

Place: Dindigul
Date : 26" May, 2023

K.5.

Chairman and Managing Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

LAKANNAN

DIN : 01601589

2 Gl
T.R. SIVARAMAN

Chief Financial Officer
Membership No : 023228

MAGESWARI KANNAN
Joint Managing Director

DIN : 02107556

e

Cumpany Secretary
Membership No : F12312




NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Notes to the Financial statements
Company Background

Maga Limited is a public limited company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 and
is domiciled in India. Its Registered Office is located at No 1, Anna Pillai Str'eet, Chennai- 600001
and the Corporate Office at No 1, Trichy Road, Dindigul-624005. The Company's Equity Shares which
were listed in the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India till 31.03.2021, were delisted with effect
from 16.04.2021. The Company is engaged in the manufacture of Wheat Products, Minerals,
Detergents and in Power Generation. The Plants of the Company are located in various places in
and around Dindigul and its Power Generating windmills are located in Coimbatore, Dharapuram,
Theni and Tirunelveli.

2. Significant Accounting Policies and key accounting estimates and judgments
Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting
Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in
the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

2.2 Basis of Preparation and Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except for
certain items that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below. The financial statements are prepared on a “going concern”
basis using accrual concept except for the cash flow information. Historical cost is generally based
on fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimate using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability at the
measurement date assuming the market participants act in their economic best interest.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purpose in these financial statements is determined
on such basis and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 - Inventories or values in use in Ind AS 36 - Impairment of
Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, as described
hereunder:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.
svel 2 - Other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

ility, either directly or indirectly; and



Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have
been reflected as '-' in these financial statements.

2.3 Current/Non-Current Classification
An asset or liability is classified as Current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

(a) The asset / liability is expected to be realized / settled in the Cumpaﬁy‘s normal operating
cycle;

(b) The asset is intended for sale or consumption;
(c) The asset / liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(d) The asset / liability is expected to be realized / settled within twelve months after the
reporting period;

(e) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period;

(f) In case of a liability, the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as Non- Current. For the purpose of Current / Non-
Current classification, the Company has reckoned its normal operating cycle as twelve months
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for
processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are classified as Non-Current. Advances given towards acquisition
of fixed assets, outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are disclosed as other Non-current assets.

2. 4 New Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, as below.

Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although
early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not
xpected to be material.



2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible items that:

(a) Are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes: and

(b) Are expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment shall be recognised as ah asset if and only if:

(a) It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and

(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably.
An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost.

Following initial recognition PPEs are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) The cost of an item of PPE comprises of purchase price, taxes and duties net of input tax credit
entitlement and other items directly attributable to the cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted. Cost includes cost of
replacing a part of a PPE if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses directly attributable to new
manufacturing facility during its construction period are capitalized if the recognition criteria are
met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is
capitalized under relevant heads of PPE if the recognition criteria are met.

Borrowing cost (net of interest earned on temporary investments of those borrowings) directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a
part of the cost of the assets till the assets are substantially ready for its intended use.

(iii) The Company identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of PPE separately, if
the part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of PPE and has useful life that
is materially different from that of the remaining item.

(iv) Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the
definition of PPE are capitalized at Cost. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are
recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. All up gradation /
enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring significant additional
benefits.

(v) Capital advances and Capital Work-in-Progress

Advances given towards acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets. Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as
on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as Capital Work-in-Progress. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of PPE when completed and ready for intended use,

(vi) Depreciation of PPE

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on
written down value (WDV) method in respect of Soaps & Detergents Division at Vedasandur and
under the straight line method in respect of other divisions. Depreciation is provided based on
useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013,



(vii) Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Years
Factory Building and Roads 10 - 30
Electrical and Installations 5-10
Plant and Equipment 1-15 ,
Vehicles 1-15
Desktop Computers & Laptops 1-10
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10
Office Equipments 1-10
Solar and Wind Power Generation Plant 22

Assets costing Rs. 5,000/- and below are depreciated in full within the Financial Year.
2.6 Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building-or part of a building-or both) held (by the
owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes
or sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property shall be recognized as an asset when, and only when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity;
and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably. An investment property shall be
measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs shall be included in the initial measurement. An
investment property shall be derecognized (eliminated from the balance sheet) on disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal.

2.7 Intangible Assets
a) Intangible Assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life is reviewed annually
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

b) Useful lives of Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are amortised equally over the estimated useful life.
2.8 De-recognition of tangible and intangible assets

An item of tangible and intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of tangible and intangible assets is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.9 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Company annually reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
y such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable



amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the
recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
of loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment of loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.10 Revenue Recognition

Effective from 1st April, 2018 the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”.

(a) Sale of products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time upon transfer of control of the products to customers i.e.,
when the products are delivered to the common carrier, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products.

The Company accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of
revenue based on the actual underlying performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by
the customer / indentor towards earning the discount / incentive.

(b) Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliablv. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and using effective interest rate
method.

(c) Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are recognized on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to

the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

(d) Rental Income / Warehousing Charges

Rental income and warehousing charges from operating leases are recognized on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in
cost of inflation index.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories including traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Materials




Cost includes taxes and duties (other than taxes and duties for which input tax credit is available),
freight and other direct expenses. Stocks of Raw materials, Stores & Spares, Packing Materials and
chemicals are valued at cost on First in First Out. Finished Goods / Stock-in-Progress are valued at
lower of cost and net realisable value and cost includes material, direct labour, overheads (other
than selling and administrative overheads) incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are periodically identified and provision is made
where necessary.

2.12 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.13 Leases
As Lessor:

Company as lessor assess lease contract to operating lease or finance lease. A lease is classified as
an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. A lessor shall recognise lease payments from operating leases as
income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. The lessor shall apply another
systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use
of the underlying asset is diminished.

As Lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of a contract. Certain
lease contracts include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability at the
date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Company as a lessee except for payments
associated with short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and low value leases, which are
recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

The Right-of-Use assets are initially recognized at cost comprising initial lease liability which
include lease payments made on or before the commencement date and discounted future less
payments. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The future lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are
re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-Use assets if the Company
changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Right-
of-Use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
useful life of the asset Right-of use assets and lease liability have been separately presented in the
balance sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow in the cash flow




2.14 Employee Benefits
(a) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee
renders the related service. The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of Short Term
Employee Benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued
expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

(b) Post-employment benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Payments to Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit Plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Contributions to Provident
Fund and Superannuation Fund are treated as Defined Contribution Plans, since funded with
Provident Fund Commissioner (as per the provisions of the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952) and Life Insurance Corporation of India, respectively.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

The company operates the Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan for employees. The cost of providing
defined benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation
being carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance
Sheet represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value
of plan assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations
resulting from this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan. Gratuity and Retirement Benefit Schemes
operated by the Company are treated as Defined Benefit Plans. All expenses represented by
current service cost, past service cost, if any, and net interest on the defined benefit liability /
(asset) are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability / ( asset ) comprising actuarial gains and
losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit s liability / asset), are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and taken to
retained earnings. (Such re-measurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the subsequent periods). The Company presents the above liability / (asset) as current and non-
current in the Balance Sheet as per actuarial valuation by the independent Actuary, however, the
entire liability towards gratuity to employees (other than Directors) is considered as current as the
company will contribute this amount to gratuity fund within the next twelve months.

(c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits
As per policy of the Company, compensated absence is not accumulated.
2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
stimated to settle the present obligations, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
“ (when the effect of the time value of money is material).



When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtual certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.16 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets amd financial liabilities
are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are recognized
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.17 Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

(a) Classification of financial Assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The debt instruments carried at amortised cost includes Deposits, Loans and advances recoverable
in cash.

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. All other financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value.

(b) Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Investment in Equity Instruments at FVTOCI
(i) Investments in Equity Instruments in Subsidiaries and associates

The Company has elected to carry investment in equity instruments in subsidiaries and associates
ost in accordance with paragraph 10 of Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements.



(ii) Investments in Other Equity Instruments

The Company has irrevocably designated to carry investment in Other Equity Instruments at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income. On initial recognition, the Company can make an
irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in
Fair Value in Other Comprehensive Income pertaining to Investments in Equity Instruments. This
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. Theso:; elected investments
were initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for Equity Instruments through Other
Comprehensive Income’. On derecognition of such Financial Assets, cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in OCI is not reclassified from Equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However,
the Company may transfer such cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within Equity.

The Company has Equity Investments which are not held for trading. The Company has elected the
FVTOCI irrevocable option for these investments (see MNote 6). Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 2.2.

(d) Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses “Expected Credit Loss'(ECL) model, for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

- The 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the financial instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or
- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instruments).

- For Trade receivable, Company applies “simplified approach” which requires expected life time
losses to be recognized from initial recognition of these receivables.

- For other assets, the Company uses 12 months ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is
no significant increase in credit risk, if there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is
used.

(e) Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109, a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. Concomitantly, if the
asset is one that is measured at

(a) Amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to Reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset
represents an equity investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously
taken to reserves is classified within equity.

2.18 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

(a) Classification as Debt or Equity

ebt and eqmty instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or




(b) Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(c) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at the value of respective cantractual obligations.
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in
the” Finance costs” line item.

(d) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms , or the terms of an existing liability modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.19 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign
exchange rate risks, by means of foreign exchange forward contracts. Derivatives are initially
recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit and loss
depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

2.20 Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional currency of the Company is determined as Indian National Rupee (INR}).

(a) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency (ie
Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency as at the date of the transaction.

(b) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date

Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured fair value in a foreign
currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

(¢) Recognition of exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period
or in previous financial statements is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise.

1 Cash Flow Statement

lows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for
fects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash



receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are sedregated based on the available information.

2.22 Taxes on Income
Taxes on income comprise of Current Tax and Deferred Tax.
(a) Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxabler profit for a period.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years (temporary
difference) and items that are never taxable or deductible (permanent difference) under the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the
reporting period together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
affect neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,
deferred tax assets are not recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the benefits of part of or all of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted by the
Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. MAT Credit Entitlement is in the
form of unused tax credits and is accordingly grouped under Deferred Tax Assets.

(c) Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly
in equity respectively.

2.23 Events after reporting period

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size of nature are only
disclosed.

2.24 Financial and Management Information System

he Company's Accounting System is designed to unify the Financial and Cost Records and also to
ynply with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 to provide financial and cost
grmation appropriate to the businesses and facilitate Internal Control.



2.25 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares..
3. Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements
3.1 Use of Estimates

¥

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as given below.

(a) Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company
engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The Management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model,

(b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment at the end of
each reporting period. During the current year, there has been no change in useful life considered
for the assets.

(c) Cash Discounts

In accordance with Ind AS 115, the Company deducts cash discounts from the revenue for sale of
products. Cash discounts on the sale of products in the last month of the year is estimated based
on the past experience.

(d) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss and in Other Comprehensive Income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. Information about such
valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements.

ompany has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an
pw of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute



can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and
relevant external advice, Management provides for its best estimate of liability. Such accruals are
by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty.
Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(f) Tax expense

Significant judgments and estimates are involved in estimating the budgeted profits for the
purposes of advance tax, determining the provision for income tax, Minimum Alternate Tax and MAT
Credit which may get revised pursuant to the determination by the Income Tax authorities.

4. Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, as belaow:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
standalone financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023, The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone
financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statement.
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC0O20409

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

4.a. Right of Use Assets

Right of Use Assets

s Leasehold Land |Retail Outlets Totas
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 7.23 . 7.23
Additions 4.56 8.56 13.12
Disposals - - .
Cost as at March 31, 2023 11.79 8.56 20.35
Amortization
As at April 01, 2022 * 0.00 - 0.00
Charge for the year 0.38 1.16 1.54
Disposals E - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.38 1.16 1.54
Net Block
As at March 31, 2022 7.23 = 7.23
As at March 31, 2023 11.41 7.40 18.81
* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
4.b. Investment Property
As at As at
Particulars . March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of:
Investment Property 10.89 10.28
Total 10.89 10.28
Investment Property
Cost
Gross Carrying amount as at beginning of the year 10.61 10.54
Additions 0.97 0.07
Closing balance as at end of the year 11.58 10.61
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at beginning of the year 0.34 0.34
Depreciation for the year” 0.35 0.00
Closing balance as at end of the year 0.69 0.34
Net block 10.89 10.27
* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property
As at As at
Rarticuiars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Rental income derived from investment property 2.17 1.52
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation
and indirect expenses 2.17 1.52
Less - Depreciation (0.35) (0.34)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 1.82 1.18
Less - Indirect expenses (0.07) (0.14)
-%oﬁt from investment property 1.75 1.04

\rm
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

5. Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)
As at March 31, 2023
a. CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years Total

Projects in Progress 53.10 0.78 1.67 1.56 57.11
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

b. CWIP completion schedule for whose completion has exceeded original plan has been provided below.
To be completed in

Particulars < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years Total
Bakery Division 1.56 - - - 1.56
TOTAL 1.56 - - - 1.56

As at March 31, 2022
a. CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particuiar < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years voral
Projects in Progress 10.19 9.37 - 1.56 21.12
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -

b. CWIP completion schedule for whose completion has exceeded original plan has been provided below.

To be completed in

Particulars <1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years | O

Bakery Division 1.56 - - - 1.56
TOTAL 1.56 . z : bl

6. Other Intangible Assets

Other Intangible Assets
Particulars Trade Mark Total
Software (Refer note
1 below)
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 1.77 0.26 2.03
Additions 0.03 0.05 0.08
Cost as at March 31, 2023 1.80 0.31 2.1
Amortization
As at April 01, 2022 0.90 - 0.90
Charge for the year 0.30 - 0.30
As at March 31, 2023 1.20 - 1.20
Net Block
As at March 31, 2022 0.87 0.26 1.13
As at March 31, 2023 0.60 0.31 0.91
Notes:

. Trade Marks with carrying amount of Rs 0.26 crores has been considered as intangible with indefinite useful
=>as there are no technical, technological or contractual limitations for the trade marks based on
amagement assessment on March 31, 2023.

' management has tested for impairment of trade marks as of 31 March, 2023 and concluded no

ent to be recognized during the year,



Naga Limited
CIN : UZ24246TN1991PLCO20409
Motes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless atherwise stated )

Particulars As at March 2023 As at March 2022

7 Financial assets - Non-current investments
Trade Quoted
Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through profit and loss account (FVTPL)
400 (PY : 400) equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up
in Indian Overseas Bank * 0.00 0.00

Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
4431 (PY : Nil) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up
in Life Insurance Corporation Of India 0.25 -
Trade Unquoted
Investments in Subsidiary Companies (At Cost)
10,000 (PY : 10,000) Equity Shares of USD 10/- each fully paid-up

in Maga Far East Private Limited 0.48 0.48
2,29,641 (PY : 9,641) Equity Shares of BDT 10/- each fully paid-up
in Naga Mills Private Limited 0.18 0.01

Investments in Associate Companies (At Cost)
CY Nil (PY : 62,400) Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid-up

in Annai Power Private Limited . 0.62
CY Nil (PY : 26,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
in Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited . 0.03

Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through profit and loss account (FVTPL)
21,960 (PY : 21,960) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up
in Mojro Technologies Private Limited 0.79 0.79

Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

18,00,000 (PY : 13,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

in Nellai Renewables Private Limited 1.81 1.36

CY Nil (PY : 1,33,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

in Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited - 0.13

416 (PY : 416) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up

in AR VE EM Energy Private Limited * 0.00 0.00

1,800 (PY : Nil) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

in Tutifood Private Limited* 0.00 -
Total equity instruments (a) 3.51 3.42

Trade Unguoted
Investments in Preference share instruments measured at
Fair Value through profit and loss account (FVTPL)
21,710 (PY : 21,710) Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

in Mojro Technologies Private Limited 0.78 0.78
Total preference instruments (b) 0.78 0.78
Total Investments (a+b) 4.29 4.20

Aggregate amount of quoted investments * 0.25 0.00

Aggregate market value of quoted investments " .

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments 4.04 4.20
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - ¢
Category wise Non-Current investments

Financial Assets measured at cost 0.66 1.14
FVTPL 1.57 1.57
FVTOCI 2.06 1.49

alues are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.



MNaga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

( All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise statad )

Particulars As at March 2023 As at March 2022

8 Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits 5.30 3.22
Rent deposits 2.58 , 0.97
Bank deposits maturing after 12 months from the reporting

date * 2.73 5.71
Total 10.61 9.90

* Represents balances with banks that are restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for mare than
12 months from the balance sheet date.

9 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance income-tax net of provision for tax of Rs. 4.76 Cr

(PY : Rs. 3.07 Cr ) 2.36 1.24
Total 2.36 1.24

10 Other non-current assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances 13.72 11.90
Statutory and other deposits 1.31 0.61
Total 15.03 12.51

11 Inventories *
(At Lower of cost and Net realisable value)

Raw Materials 66.54 114.77
Raw materials-in-transit 1.19 .
Work-in-progress B.42 6.83
Finished goods 28.73 22,38
Finished goods-in-transit 3.22 2.10
Packing materials 8.33 9.72
Stores and spares 10.28 8.67
Total ~ 126.71_ 164.47

* For method of valuation please refer note no 2.11 and please refer Note 48 for security created on
Inventories.

12. Financial Assets - Current : Trade receivables

At amortised cost
- Secured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered good * 75.34 88.97
- Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk 1.51 0.60

76.85 89.57
Less: Allowance for credit impairment (1.51) (0.60)
Total Trade Receivables 75.34 88.97

* Includes dues from M.M. Detergents Company Pvt. Ltd., Rs. 0.32 cr., a related party.
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Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As on 31st March 2023

6
Mot | Not| =<6 1-2 | 2-3 | =3
Particulars S months Total
ears | years |years
Billed | Due |months P yeary ; y y
Undisputed
- Trade Receivables - considered good 12.28 |46.76| 11.33 2.04 2.25 0.27| 0.41 | 75.34

- Trade Receivables - significant

increase in credit risk = - 0.35 0.56| 0.60( 1.51

12.28 46.76| 11.33 | 2.04 2.60 | 0.83( 1.01 |76.85
Less: Significant increase in credit risk . s ¥ - [(0.35) | (0.56) |(0.60) | (1.51)

Less: Credit Impaired

Total Trade Receivables 12.28 46.76| 11.33 | 2.04 2,25 | 0.27) 0.41 (75.34

As on 31st March 2022

6

Mot | Not| <6 1-2 | 2-3 | = 3
months
Particulars Billed | Due |months years | years |years| 1otal
to 1 year
Undisputed
- Trade Receivables - considered good 14.00 |22.51| 48.41 2.74 0.90 0.11| 0.30 | 88.97

- Trade Receivables - significant increase

in credit risk 0.25| 0.12| 0.23| 0.60

14.00 [22.51| 48.41 2.74 1.15| 0.23| 0.53 |89.57
Less: Significant increase in credit risk . - - - 1(0.25) | (0.12)(0.23) | (0.60)

Less: Credit Impaired

Total Trade Receivables 14,00 22.51| 48.41 2.74 0.90( 0.11) 0.30 |88.97

13 Cash and cash equivalents

- Balances with Banks In Current Account 2.75 2.66
- Cash- on- Hand 0.09 0.15
Total 2.84 2.81

14 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
In fixed deposits
In Margin money with Banks Maturing within 12 months from

the reporting date* 5.83 4.63
In Earmarked Accounts
Unpaid Dividend Account 0.02 0.02
Supplier Scheme Account - 0.33
Total 5.85 4.98

* Represents deposits towards margin money for short term borrowings and non-fund limits.
15 Loans

(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and advances to employees 0.86 . 0.42
Loan to Subsidiary Company . 0.48

otal 0.86 0.90
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16 Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Insurance Claims Receivable * 0.00 0.00

Intererest accrued but not due 0.23 0.07

MTM Assets on derivative contracts not designated through

cash flow hedge 0.06 . 0.78
Expenses recoverable from subsidiaries 008 — 009
Total —037 —0.94_

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

17 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Gratuity assets (0.00) 0.21
Advance to suppliers 3.75 16.58
Balances with Government authorities 1.08 4
Prepaid expenses 4,22 3.92
Total 9.05 20.71

18 Asset re-classified as held for sale
Gross value of asset held for sale:

Land 1.87 -

Buildings 1.81 -
Accumulated depreciation of asset held for sale:

Land - -

Buildings (0.63) -
Net book value of asset held for sale ~ 3,05 -

19. Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares| Amount|No. of Shares| Amount

Particulars

Authorised Share Capital
4,36,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 4,36,00,000 | 43.60 | 2,75,00,000 | 27.50
4,36,00,000 | 43.60 | 2,75,00,000 | 27.50
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
1,42,48,000 Equity Shares of Rs10/- each fully paid | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25
1,42,48,000 | 14.25 1,42,48,000 | 14.25

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2023|As at March 31, 2022

Particulars No. of Shares| Amount|No. of Shares| Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25
Add : Issued during the year - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 |1,42,48,000 | 14.25
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(b) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the total share capital
As at March 31, 2023|As at March 31, 2022

Name of the Shareholder Number of | % of | Number of | % of
shares held | Holding| shares held |Holding

Sri. K.S. Kamalakannan 72,52,377 |50.90% 72,52,047 |50.90%
Smt. Mageswari Kannan 25,63,538 |17.99% t 24,79,512 (17.40%
Sri. Sounder Kannan 13,17,327 | 9.25% 13,17,327 | 9.25%
M/s. M.M.Detergents Company (P) Ltd., 16,33,460 |11.46% 16,33,460 (11.46%
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand 8,57,152 | 6.02% 8,57,152 | 6.02%

(c) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The equity shares of the Company having par-value of Rs.10/- per share rank pari-pasu in all respects
including voting rights, dividend entitlement and repayment of capital.

(d) Details of shares held by Promoters

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the Promoters Number of| % of |% Change| Number of| % of [% Change|
shares held Holding| . 2V"'"2 |shares heldHolding|, JU "2
e olding| .o year|® ares he olding| e year
sri. K.S. Kamalakannan 72,52,377| 50.90% 0.00% 72,52,047 | 50.90% 0.13%
M/s. K.S. Kamalakannan HUF 34,700 0.24% 0.00% 34,700( 0.24% 0.00%
smt. Mageswari Kannan 25,63,538| 17.99% 0.59% 24,79,512 | 17.40% 0.24%
Sri. Sounder Kannan 13,17,327| 9.25% 0.00% 13,17,327| 9.25%( -0.99%
M/s. Sounder Kannan HUF 37,800| 0.26% 0.00% 37,800| O0.26% 0.00%
Smt. Monaa Kannan 1,42,480| 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,480| 1.00% 1.00%
Sri. D. Vijay Anand 1,42,480| 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,480| 1.00% 1.00%
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand 8,57,152| 6.02% 0.00% 8,57,152| 6.02%| -0.99%
Ms. M. Jayalalitha 1,42,906| 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,906| 1.00% 0.00%
Sri. M. Sukumar - 0.00%| -0.51% 72,041 0.51% 0.01%
M/s. M.M.Detergents Company P.Ltd., 16,33,460( 11.46% 0.00% 16,33,460( 11.46% 3.12%
1,41,24,220| 99.12%| 0.08% |1,41,11,905|99.04% | 3.52%
Particul As at As at
ki miroch March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
20. Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
a) Capital Reserves 0.11 0.11
b) Capital Reserves on account of Merger (2.65) -
¢) Securities Premium Account 1.36 1.36
d) General Reserve 3.76 3.55
e) Retained Earnings 151.03 139.65
f) Other Comprehensive Income (1.48) (0.24)
Total 152.13 144.43
a) Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.11 0.11
b) Capital Reserve on account of Merger
apital reserve on account of merger (refer note no. 51) (2.65) =

urities Premium Reserve
ance at the beginning and end of the year 1.36 1.36
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Particulars

As at

As at

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

d) General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.55 3.34
Additions during the year 0.21 0.21
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year —_ 3.76 —__ 3,55
e) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 139.65 128.94
Net profit for the period 13.01 12.35
Transfers to General Reserve (0.21) (0.21)
Dividend paid during the year (1.42) (1.43)
Balance at the end of the year T 151.03 _139.65_
f) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.24) (0.44)
Additions during the year (1.24) 0.20
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year (1.48) (0.24)
Total ~152.13 _144.43

* During the year 2022-23, Company has declared and paid interim dividend @ Rs. 1 per share
amounting to Rs. 1.42 Crs. (PY : Rs.1.43Crs)

21 Long Term Borrowings
Secured - At Amortized Cost

Term loans from Banks * 229.65 183.70
Loans from Financial Institutions * 3.29 -
Unsecured Loans from Related Parties ** 6.43 -
Total ~239.37 ~183.70

Term loan from Banks are secured by lien on non-callable Fixed Deposits. The Company has also
availed working capital facilities and other non-fund based facilities viz. bank guarantees and buyers
credit, which are secured by hypothecation of current assets. Working capital loans and other non-
fund based facilities which are repayable on demand with interest rate ranging from 8.55% p.a to
9.00% p.a and term loan interest ranging from 8.35 % p.ato 10.50% p.a.

The outstanding excludes current maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No.26c).

* Refer Note 49 for security details.

** Represents loan availed from related parties @12% p.a, repayable after 12 months.

22 Lease Liability

a. Changes in the lease liability
Balance as at 1 April 2021 -
Recognised during the year
Lease Payments made during the year ‘
alance as at 31 March 2022 -
cognised during the year 9.23
ase Payments made during the year 1.46
alance as at 31 March 2023 7.77
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As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
b. Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities
Current Lease Liabilities 1.59 .
Non-current Lease Liabilities 6.18 *
¢. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Particulars ¢
Less than one year 1.59 -
One to five years 1.56 -
More than five years 2.62 5
Total 7.77 -
d. Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss
account
Particulars
Interest on Lease Liabilities 0.67 -
Total 0.67 -
23 Other financial liabilities
Security Deposits 2.09 2.45
Total 2.09 2.45
24 Provisions
Non Current
Provision for gratuity - Directors 3.25 2.73
Total 3.25 2.73
Current
Provision for Compensated absences 1.28 1.04
Provision for Gratuity - Directors 0.12 -
Total 1.40 1.04

25, Deferred Tax Liability - Net

As at | Adi. on Recognised As at
Particulars March 31, account| in PEL ocl March 31,
2022 of during |2022-23 2023
merger | 2022-23
As at March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between written down value /
Capital Work in Progress of Fixed Assets as per
books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961. 19.01 - 1.29 - 20.30
Expenses allowed on payment 0.20 - 0.09 0.25 0.54
Total (I) 19.21 - 1.38 0.25 20.84
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowed on payment 1.05 - 0.43 - 1.48
Expenses allowed on FairValue change on
financial instruments classified under FVTPL 0.21 - - - 0.21
Provision for doubtful debts 0.15 . 0.24 - 0.39
Carry forward losses 0.69 0.83 (1.52) . -
Total (ll) 2.10 0.83 | (0.85) - 2.08
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (I-I) 17.11 | (0.83) 2.23 0.25 18.76
~ MAT Credit Entitlement (3.07) - - - (3.07)
\}?}‘Q; Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 14.04 - 2.23 0.25 15.69
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As at Recognised in ocl As at
Particulars March 31, | P&L during 2021-22 March 31,
2021 2021-22 2022
As at March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between written down value / '
Capital Work in Progress of Fixed Assets as per
books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961. 13.55 5.46 - 19.01
Expenses allowed on payment 0.13 - 0.07 0.20
Total 13.68 5.46 0.07 19.21
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowed on payment 0.96 0.10 - 1.06
Expenses allowed on FairValue change on
financial instruments classified under FVTPL - 0.21 . 0.21
Provision for doubtful debts - 0.15 - 0.15
Carry forward losses . 0.69 . 0.69
Total 0.96 1.15 - 2.1
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12.72 4.31 0.07 17.10
MAT Credit Entitlement - (3.07) - (3.07)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12.72 1.24 0.07 14.03
Particulars AY 8t Ayt

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

26 Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:
i) Borrowings**
a) Secured - At Amortised Cost

Loans repayable on demand from banks * 36.82 65.22
b) Buyers Credit 7.97 23.93
c) Current Maturities of Long term Borrowings 57.52 56.44
Total 102.31 ~145.59

The loans have been utilized for the purpose for which it were obtained and no short term funds
have been used for long term purpose.

* secured by pari-passu charge on inventories & trade receivables and are repayable on demand.
** Secured by personal guarantees of some of the Directors of the Company.

27. Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:
iii. Trade Payables
At amortised cost

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.89 4.46
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises 97.47 96.58

Total 98.36 101.05
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Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Not <1 1-2 2-3 >3

Particulars Due | year|years |years | years Total

As on 31st March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises -| 0.89 = e - -| 0.89
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

and small enterprises 70.56 | 26.68 | 0.02 | 0.04 | 0.17| 97.47
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises . . . . ;

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises

Total 70.56 (27.57 | 0.02 | 0.04 | 0.17| 98.36

As on 31st March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises -| 4.46 . - 5| 4.46
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

and small enterprises 74.86| 20.87 | 0.61 | 0.17 | 0.08 96.59
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises - - - - - -

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises 5 £ = B i E

Total 74.86 |25.33 | 0.61 | 0.17 | 0.08/101.05

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the
Company:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of
each accounting year:

Principal 0.89 4.46
Interest - -
Total 0.89 4.46

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of

section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year. -
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of

delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the year) but without adding

the interest specified under the MSMED Act. 3
(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at

the end of each accounting year.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,

r the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure

der section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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Particulars

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

28

29

30

Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:

Other financial liabilities

At amortized cost

Security Deposits

Capital Creditors

Employee related payables

Provision for Expenses

Unclaimed /Unpaid dividends

Total

Other current liabilities

Advances received for supply of goods

Advance received for non-current asset held for sale
Provision for Gratuity - Employees

Statutory dues payable to government authorities
Total

Revenue from operations

Sale of Products

Manufactured Products

Wheat and Food Products

Minerals

Traded Goods

Wheat and Food Products

Minerals

Total sale of products (a)

Other Operating Income

Windmill Income

Warehousing Charges

Sale of scrap

Income from Plant & Machinery and Vehicles

Export Incentive Income

Total other operating income (b)
Total Revenue from Operation (a+b)

0.13
1.44
6.60
7.67
0.02

___15.86

3.93
0.56
0.35
6.56

1,022.30
1,036.44

20.53
0.11
2,079.38

0.17
2.74
10.06
6.21

0.50
19.68
2,099.06

0.31
2.77
4.90
3.07
0.02
11.07

11.96
0.00
0.00
2.80

14.76

841.94
798.21

71:3
0.58
1,712.04

0.21

1.61
11.61
3.46

0.03
16.92
1,728.96

Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the
goods is transferred to the customer and payment is generally due as per the terms of contract with
customers.

31 Other income
Interest Income from Deposits with banks etc. -

carried at amortized cost 0.80 0.75
Profit on sale of PPE (net) * 4,00 0.00
Rent Receipts 2.25 1.52
Mark to markup gain on forward contracts 0.03 0.86
Other Misc, Income ** 0.01 0.12
Total 7.09 3.25

.//*Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
**Other misc. income includes write back of Bad Debts, return journey income.
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For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

32 Cost of materials consumed

Wheat and Food Products 826.94 695.83

Minerals 944.70 691.44

Total 1,771.64 , “1,387.27
33 Purchases of Stock in Trade

Wheat and Food Products 20.75 65.71

Minerals - 4

Total —_20.75 — 68,71

34 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-
trade and finished goods
Opening Stock
Work-in-Progress

Wheat and Food Products 6.83 8.46

Minerals - 24.85

Finished Goods

Wheat and Food Products 11.08 6.34

Minerals 13.39 11.45
(a) 31.30 51.10

Closing Stock
Work-in-Progress

Wheat and Food Products 8.42 6.83
Minerals . -
Finished Goods
Wheat and Food Products 16.02 11.08
Minerals 15.89 13.39
(b) 40.33 31.30
Total changes in inventories (a-b) (9.03) ~ 19.80
35 Employee benefits expenses *
Salaries, wages and bonus 62.83 46.35
Contribution to provident and other funds 4.60 3.20
Staff Welfare Expenses 2.47 2.20
Directors’ Remuneration 4.17 3.77
Total 74.07 55.52

* Employee benefit expense is net of Employee cost capitalised of Rs.1.84 Cr (PY Rs. 1.41 Cr)
36 Finance Cost *

Interest Paid - Banks 31.31 27.36
- Lease Liability 0.67 .
- Financial Institution - 0.74
- Buyers Credit 0.58 0.39
- Others 0.85 0.02
Other Borrowing Cost 1.01 1.48
Total 34.42 29.99

* Finance cost is net of Interest capitalised of Rs.4.34 Cr (PY Rs. 3.10 Cr)
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For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

37 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 40.70 36.69
Amortization of Intangible assets 0.30 0.29
Amortization of Right of use assets * 1.54 0.00
Total 42.54 36.98

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

38 Other expenses
Manufacturing Expenses

Production Expenses 18.94 16.69
Power and Fuel 22.13 17.60
Repairs to Machinery 13.47 10.54
Laboratory Expenses 3.27 2.20
(A) 57.81 47.03
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Advertisement 6.98 5.74
Brokerage and Commission 1.17 1.17
Discount & Claims and Settlement 3.28 1.71
Sales Promotion 3.74 1.42
Freight and Handling 39.55 32.32
(B) 54.72 42.36
Establishment Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 2.04 1.96
Others 4.21 3.78
Bank Charges and Commission 0.43 0.66
Loss on Foreign Currency Fluctuation 0.64 0.68
Provision for doubtful debts 0.91 0.60
Bad debts written Off 0.11 1.05
Printing & Stationery and Communication 1.63 1.02
Professional Charges 4.05 2.52
Payments to auditors [Refer note 40] 0.20 0.16
Directors’ Sitting Fees 0.04 0.04
Donations 0.28 0.67
Travelling Expenses 6.92 3.40
Insurance, Rates, Licence and Taxes 5.54 4.24
Rent & Electricity 7.54 6.07
CSR Expenses [Refer note 41] 0.47 0.33
Windmill Expenses 2.32 1.36
Net gain / (loss) arising on financial instruments
mandatorily measured at FVTPL 0.00 - 0.93
Miscellaneous Expenses * 1.90 1.42
(C) 39.23 30.89
Total (A+B+C) 151.76 120.28

* Miscellaneous expenses consists of Security Charges, Pooja Expenses & Subscription Expenses.
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Particulars

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

39 Earnings per share (EPS)
Net Profit after tax for the year
Basic earnings per share (Rs. 10/-)
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding
Nominal value of ordinary shares (Rs. Per share)
Basic earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. Per share)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs. 10/-)
Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding
Nominal value of ordinary shares (Rs. Per share)
Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. Per share)

40 Payment to auditors
As statutory auditors :
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax audit fees
Fees for other services
Total
41 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
a) Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate Social
Responsibility during the year
(i) Brought Forward
(ii) During the year

b) Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction and/ or acquisition of any asset
(ii) Other purposes [other than (i) above]

c) Closing amount over spent as at March 31, 2023
d) Nature of CSR activities
- Installation of Oxygen Plant in Government Hospital

42 Income tax expense
(a) Major Components of Income Tax Expenses
Current tax
Current tax on the Taxable Income for the year
MAT Credit availed

Deferred tax
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Refer Note 25)

Total

b) Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the Accounting
Profit for the year is as under :

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the
ompany

13.01

1.42
10.00

9.13

1.42
10.00

9.13

0.15
0.01
0.04

0.20

(1.74)
0.47

1.27

1.27

4.76

4.76

2.23
2.23

6.99

25.17%
20.00

5.03

12.36

1.42
10.00

8.67

1.42
10.00
8.67

0.13
0.01
0.01
0.15

(1.40)
0.33

(1.07)

0.67

0.67
1.74

0.67

3.07
(3.07)

4.31
4.31
4.31

 25.17%
16.67

4.19
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For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/

(taxable) in calculated taxable income 1.13 0.41
Effect on differential tax rate for fair value changes on

financial instruments 0.20 , 0.04
Effect on account of merger ( Refer Note 51) 0.83 -
Others (0.20) (0.33)
Total 6.99 4.31

43 Foreign exchange earnings & expenditure

Foreign exchange earnings 8.05 12.52
Foreign exchange expenditure 34.96 44.42

44 Expenditure in foreign currency

Interest 0.63 1.12
Professional / Technical Fees 2.15 -
Total 2.78 1.12

a) Contingent Liability
1. Disputed Electricity Tax-Pending before Hon'ble

Supreme Court 1.00 0.86
2. Disputed Electricity Tax-Pending before Hon'ble Madras

High Court 0.10 0.05
3. Deemed Demand (Power Purchase) pending before

Hon'ble Madras High Court 0.17 0.17
4. Disputed PF payables pending before Hon'ble Madras

High Court 0.91

5. Disputed Windmill banking adjustments pending before

Hon'ble Madras High Court - 0.26
6. Export obligations pending to be completed - 1.04

In respect of above matters, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are
determinable only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. The Company is contesting these demands and the
Management, including its advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate
process.

No expense has been accrued in the standalone financial statements for the demands raised. The
Management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

b) Commitments
Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be
executed on Capital account not provided for 9.75 55.35
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Particulars

Year ended

Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

46. Lease arrangements
As Lessor
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements
for certain surplus facilities. The leases are cancellable at the
option of either party to lease and may be renewed based on
mutual agreement of the parties.
Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

47. Financial Instruments
Capital Management

217

1.52

The Company adheres to a cautious Capital management that seeks to trigger growth creation and
maximisation of shareholders' value. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital
includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has been funding its growth and acquisition plans and working capital requirements
through a balanced approach of internal accruals and external debt from banks. The Company monitors
the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the over all debt

component of the Company.
The Following table summarises the capital of the Company:

Share Capital 14.25 14.25
Other Equity 152.13 144.43
Equity (A) 166.38 158.68
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.84 2.81
Other Bank Balances 5.85 4.98
Total Fund (B) 8.69 7.79
Debt (CM + LTL+STL) 341.68 329.29
Total Debt (C) 341.68 329.29
Net Debt (D=C-B) 332.99 321.50
Total Capital (Equity + Net Debt) 499.37 480.18
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (No of Times) (E=D/A) 2.00 2.03
Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 75.34 88.97
Cash and cash equivalents 2.84 2.81
Bank balances other than above 5.85 4,98
Loans given (current) 0.86 0.90
Others 10.98 10.84
b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments (non-current) 1.57 1.57
c. Measured at Cost
Investments (non-current) 0.66 1.14
d. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVIOCI)
Investments (non-current) 2.06 1.49
Financial liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings (Non-current) 239.37 183.70
Borrowings (Current) 102.31 145.59
Trade payables 98.36 101.05
Lease liability 7.77 .
Others 17.94 13.52
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Financial risk management

Objectives and Policies

The Company’s financial liabilities comprises mainly of term loan borrowings, trade payables and other
payables. The Company’s financial assets comprises mainly of cash and cash equivalents, other
balances with banks , trade receivables and investments. The Company has financial risk exposure in
the form of market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies of the Company are
monitored by the Board of Directors. The present disclosure made by the Corhpany summarises the
exposure to the financial risks

1. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market price comprises of three types of risk-currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk. The financial instruments affected by market risk includes Rupee
Term Loan and Loans and Advances.

a) Interest rate exposure

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has availed significant Rupee Term Loan at floating rate
of interest. The Company has not entered into any of the interest rate swaps and hence is exposed to
interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity Analysis

The Company considering the economic environment in which it operates has determined the interest
rate sensitivity analysis (interest exposure) at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate
liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole of the year. A 25 basis point +/- fluctuation in the
interest rate is used for disclosing the sensitivity analysis.

Impact on Profits before Tax As at March 31, 2023 [As at March 31, 2022
Interest rates - Increase by 25 basis points (0.85) (0.82)
- Decreased by 25 basis points 0.85 0.82

The increase / decrease in interest rate expense is mainly attributable to Company's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate of borrowings. The interest rate sensitivity analysis is done holding on
the assumption that all other variables remaining constant.

b) Foreign Currency risk exposure

The Company imports wheat, minerals, stores & spares and capital goods for which payables are
denominated by foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on these
transactions. The Company follows a conservative and sound policy by entering into simple Forward
Exchange Contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk whose maturity co-terminous with the maturity
period of foreign currency liabilities. (underlying) In respect of exports, exports are made against
advances received. Hence, the Company is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk in
respect of its exports.

c) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market traded prices. The Company's investment in fixed deposits with banks is fixed and hence there
is no risk price movement arising to the Company. The Company's equity investments in its Subsidiaries
and Associates is for strategic purpose and not held for trading. They are carried at cost and hence are
not subject to price related risk. Other investments in equity instruments are held with a view to hold
them for long term basis and not for trading.

Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure

~\The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary

bilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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As on March 31, 2023

Liabilities Assets
Net Net Net overall
Exposure | [japjlity Exposure | (japjlity | exposure on the
Currency Gross thlgegd exposure| Gross hﬁg‘%‘-;d exposure |currency - net assets
exposure sth th u on the
derivatives c::rr‘ren?:y CXPOSUTE | derivatives currency } / (net liabilities)
usoD 0.10 0.10 - - - .
EURO - - - 5 5 .
BDT : ‘ : ;
In INR 7.93 7.93 B - B Z
As on March 31, 2022
Liabilities Assets
; Net . . Net Net overallh
Xposure | (iability POSUr® | (iability | exposure on the
Cuirrancy Gross hﬁ;ﬁd exposure| Gross hﬁ:'i?r-“;d exposure [currency - net assets
exposure on the |exposure th il
derivatives| c,;rrency P derivatives czlr"reniy / (net liabilities)
usb 0.42 0.25 0.17 0.00* - . (0.17)
EURO 0.01 - 0.01 - - - (0.01)
BDT - - - 0.62 - 0.62 0.62
In INR 31.34 | 17.89| 13.45 0.56 i 0.56 (12.89)

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
2 Credit Risk

The credit risk refers to risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets as trade receivables,
bank balances, other balances with banks and other receivables. The credit risk rising from the
exposure of investing in other balances with banks and bank balances is limited and there is no
collateral held against these because the counter parties are Public sector Banks.Trade receivables
consists of a large number of customers. The Company has established a credit policy under which
every customer is analyses for credit worthiness. Major customers places advances. The Company
makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the
risk of default in payments and makes provision at each reporting period wherever outstanding is for
longer period and involves higher risk.

3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may
result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly to meet obligations when due. The Company’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by i) maintaining adequate and sufficient cash and
cash equivalents including investments in mutual funds ii) making available the funds from realising
timely maturities of financial assets to meet obligations when due. The liquidity risk management
involves matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting
period :

Details March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expiring within one year 274.00 151.73
'c[NExpiring beyond one year - -
Company makes an annual /long term financial plan so as to ensure there are no maturity mismatches
ttlement of liabilities.
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48(a) Security Details of Long Term Borrowings

(i) Term loan from The ICICI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1.70 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 2.90 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under loan.

(ii) Term loan from The HDFC Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 121.90 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 96.92 Crores) is primarily secured by the
assets purchased under the loan and personal assets of some of the Executive Directors.

(iii) Term loan from The IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 18.42 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 20.38) is primarily secured by the land and building
situated at No.133, Trichy Road, Dindigul-624005.

(iv) Term loan from The Karur Vysya Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 65.69 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 45.78 Crores) is primarily secured by the
assets purchased under the loan and equitable mortgage on Minerals land located at Dindigul.

(v) Term loan from The State Bank of India amounting to Rs. 37.10 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 17.69 Crores) is primarily secured by equitable
mortgage of the assets of the Company located at Trichy.

(vi) Term loan from Indusind Bank Ltd amounting to Rs.11.91 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31,03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 16.65 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under the loan and land at Seelapadi Village, Dindigul.

(vii) Term loan from IDFC First bank Limited amounting to Rs.24.89 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 25.66 Crores). is primarily secured by
hypothecation of the assets purchased under the loan and land at Padiyur, Dindigul.

(vifi)Term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd amounting to Rs. 0.36 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 0.15 Crores) is primarily secured by
hypothecation of the assets purchased under the loan.

(ix)Term loan from Axis Bank Ltd amounting to Rs.5.18 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 6.95 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under the loan and land at Seelapadi Village, Dindigul.

(x)Term loan from Fullerton india Pvt Ltd amounting to Rs.3.29 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year NIL crores) is primarily secured by equitable mortgage on
Modern Nagar land located at Dindigul.

Note:
a) The said loans are repayable in monthly / quarterly instalments.

b) The Company does not have any continuing default as on the Balance Sheet date in the repayment of
loan or interest.

c) The loans have been guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company in certain cases.
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48(b) Term Loans Outstanding, Rates of interest & Terms of Repayments *:

Remaining
Repayment Tenure 0/S as on
S.No. Bank Loan Amt| ROl :.e‘r’ms inactesr | 3005 5055
Months)
1.TERM LOANS '
1 INDUSIND 9.55 10.50% Q 3 1.10
2 ICICI 7.60 8.55% M 17 1.70
3 INDUSIND 15.00 10.50% Q 10 7.50
4 HDFC 11.50 9.95% M 70 7.82
5 HDFC 12.30 9.95% M 47 7.25
6 HDFC 36.00 9.95% M 48 21.69
7 HDFC 13.13 9.40% M 70 8.92
8 IDFC 30.00 9.60% M 20 24.89
9 HDFC 26.00 9.65% M 60 26.00
10 HDFC 9.00 9.55% M 60 9.00
11 KVB 30.00 9.35% M 108 21.00
12 KVB 13.16 9.50% M 114 10.91
13 SBI 12.00 9.75% M 35 3.86
14 SBI 10.50 9.75% M 28 4.15
15 FULLERTON "3.73 11.15% M 96 3.30
Total Term Loans 159.09
2. LOANS AGAINST PROPERTY
1 HDFC 26.00 9.05% M 25 7.99
2 HDFC 11.00 9.20% M 25 4.04
3 SBI 17.00 8.65% M 35 7.79
4 IDBI 16.00 9.65% M 109 12.08
5 IDBI 3.00 9.50% M 106 2.30
6 KVB 18.00 9.50% Q 8 5.88
7 KVB 40.00 9.50% Q 13 21.58
Total Loans Against Property 61.66
3. VEHICLE LOANS
1 HDFC 0.29 8.60% M 2 0.01
2 KOTAK 0.18 8.00% M 34 0.12
3 HDFC 1.07 8.00% M 54 0.96
4 HDFC 0.29 7.40% M 55 0.27
5 HDFC 1.47 8.50% M 2 0.01
6 KOTAK 0.39 7.25% M 34 0.24
Total Vehicle Loans 1.61
4. GECL LOANS
1 IDBI 3.40 9.25% M 33 2.30
2 KVB 3.15 9.25% M 34 2.23
3 HDFC 23.58 9.25% M i3 16.70
4 AXIS 7.10 7.60% M 35 5.18
5 INDUSIND 4.08 9.00% M 39 KR
6 KVE 5.30 9.25% M 36 4.09
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Remaining
Repayment Tenure 0/S as an
s.No. Bank Loan Amt|  ROI F;e‘r’ms {uarert | 3189 3693
Months)

7 SBI 6.69 8.65% M 37 5.00
8 IDBI 1.74 9.25% M 48 1.74
9 SBI 15.72 8.65% M 48 15.66
10 HDFC 11.79 8.40% M 48 11.24
14 SBI 1.50 8.95% M 72 0.65
Total GECL Loans 68.11
5. Unsecured Loans
1 M.M.Detergents

Company Pvt Ltd 6.23 12.00% NA NA 6.23
2 Mrs. Padmini 0.20 12.00% NA NA 0.20
Total Unsecured Loans 6.43
Grand Total 296.90

*The outstanding includes current maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No.21)
49 Retirement benefit plans
1.Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund which is defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under
the scheme, the company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund
the benefit. The Company recognised Rs 4.60 Cr (year ended 31.03.2022 Rs 3.20 Cr) in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in
the rules of the scheme.

2.Defined benefit plans

a) Gratuity

Gratuity to employees (funded) and Gratuity to Directors (non funded), the most recent actuarial
valuation of the plan assets and in respect gratuity to employees scheme, the present value of the
defined benefit obligation were carried out by actuarial valuation. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit cost method. The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan (Employees)
and Gratuity (Directors) of the Company and the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company provides the Gratuity (Employees) benefit through annual
contribution and provision is made annually for Gratuity to Directors.

As per the policy of the Company the Compensated Absence is not accumulated.

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relating to the expected return on any
particular investment.

The Plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rate will
result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing above benefit and will thus result in an
increase in the value of liability (as shown in financial statements). A decrease in the bond
interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an
|increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

The presEeFt value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary

Investment risk

Interest risk

Salary escalation
risk

increase rate of plan participants in future, based on past experience. Deviation in the rate
increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability

Demographic

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the
liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out adverse
compared to the assumptions.
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Post Employment Benefit

Nsc; Particulars Gratuity-Employees Gratuity-Directors
? 31.03.2023|31.03.2022|31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022

i Changes in Defined Benefit Obligation

Present Value-Opening Balance 3.82 3.60 3.25 2.23

Current Service Cost 0.60 0.60 ' 013 0.50

Interest Cost 0.27 0.24 - -

Past services cost - (0.05) -

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligation 0.82 (0.22) -

Benefits Paid and Charges Deducted (0.34) (0.35) - -

Present Value- Closing Balance 5.17 3.82 3.38 2.73
ii | Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets

Opening Balance 4.03 3.66 . -

Expected Return on plan assets 0.31 0.26 -

Actuarial Gain on plan assets 0.02 0.05 . .

Contributions by Employer 0.80 0.41 -

Benefits Paid (0.34) (0.35) - -

Closing Balance 4.82 4.03 - -
iii | Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(as at the Year end)

Fair Value of Plan Assets 4.82 4.03 - .

Present Value of Obligations 5.17 3.82 3.38 2.73

Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised (0.35) 0.21 (3.38) (2.73)
iv | Expenses recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss

Current Service Cost 0.60 0.60 0.13 0.50

Interest on Obligation (0.04) (0.02) -

Past service cost - (0.05) -

Expenses recognised in the Statement

of Profit and Loss 0.56 0.53 0.13 0.50
v | Expenses recognised in other

Comprehensive Income

Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan obligation (0.82) 0.22

Difference between actual return and

interest income on plan assets 0.02 0.05

Net Cost in other comprehensive Income| (0.80) 0.27 - -

Asset Information

Insurer Managed 100.00% 100.00% NA NA

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate (%) 7.22% 7.36% 7.22% 7.36%

Rate of Increase in Salary (%) 5.00% 5.00% 10.00% 10.00%

Attrition Rate (%) 4,00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets (%) 7.22% 7.36% NA NA

Expected average remaining life

of employees Years 14.90 20.70 13.40 14.00
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Post Employment Benefit

3 Particulars Gratuity-Employees Gratuity-Directors
ne 31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 | 31.03.2023| 31.03.2022
vi | A quantitative sensitivity analysis for
significant assumption as at 31 March
is as shown below: v
Discount rate
0.5% increase 7.72% 7.86% 7.72% 7.86%
0.5% decrease 6.72% 6.86% 6.72% 6.86%
Rate of increase in salary
0.5% increase 5.50% 5.50% 10.50% 10.50%
0.5% decrease 4.50% 4.50% 9.50% 9.50%
vii | Expected contribution to the fund in the
next year
Year 1 0.32 0.11 0.11 0.09
Year 2 0.88 0.39 0.12 0.10
Year 3 0.35 0.32 0.12 0.10
Year 4 0.37 0.19 1.68 0.10
Year 5 0.63 0.24 0.08 1.41
Next 5 Years 1.90 1.45 1.73 1.50
50. Related party disclosures

a) List of parties having significant influence

Holding company
Subsidiary Companies

Investing Parties having substantial interest
Sri. K.5. Kamalakannan

Key management personnel
Smt. Mageswari Kannan

Sri. Sounder Kannan

Sri. D. Vijay Anand

Sri. S. Ramesh

Sri. T.R.Sivaraman

Sri. V. Balamurugan

Sri. V. Marikannan

Directors

Sri. P. Arivanandam

Sri. Padmanabhan Sivaramakrishnan lyer
Sri. 5. Neelakantan

The Company does not have any holding company
Maga Far East Private Limited

Naga Mills Private Limited

*Annai Power Private Limited

*Nagalalakshmi Energy Private Limited

*Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited

Chairman and Managing Director (KMP)

Joint Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Technical Director

Director (Projects)

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary (w.e.f 16.02.2023)
Company Secretary (upto 15.02.2023)

Independent Director
Additional Director (from 14.11.2022)
Independent Director
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Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand

Smt. Monaa Kannan

Ms. M. Jayalalitha

Sri. M. Sukumar

Sri. A.M. Gopinath

Sri. R. Hema Kumar

Sri. R. Ragavendar

Enterprises over which key managerial personnel are able to exercise significant influence
MNagalakshmi Charitable Trust

M.M.Detergents Company Private Limited

Kovil Cereals Pvt Ltd (Formerly known as "Kovil Agencies")

Dinwinn Farms LLP

Nutri Snack LLP

Sreenivasa Religious Trust

Tutifood Pvt Ltd

Lakme Investment and Finance Limited

Pluris Global Holding (India) Limited

*Confirmation Order dated 12.04.2023 for Scheme of Amalagamation of Annai Power Private Limited (Transferor
Company No.1), Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Transferor Company No.2), Dindigul Foods Park Private
Limited (Transferor Company No.3) with Naga Limited (Transferee Company) received from the Regional Director ,
Chennai with the appointed date of December 01,2022 (Refer Note 51)

b) Transaction during the year

o Nature of transactions As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
1 | Annai Power Private Limited (Associate company -
April-2022 to August-2022)
Wind Power Charges paid 1.71 2.74
Rent Paid 1.09 2.40
Rental Income * 0.00 0.00
Annai Power Private Limited (Subsidairy company -
September-2022 to Nov-2022)
Wind Power Charges paid 0.64 -
Rent Paid 0.65 -
Rental Income * 0.00 -
Annai Power Private Limited (Post Merger)
Wind Power Charges paid 0.49 -
Rent Paid 0.87
Rental Income * 0.00 “
2 | Sri. K.5. Kamalakannan
Remuneration 1.08 1.03
Rent Paid 1.12 1.12
Interest Paid * - 0.00
Dividend Paid 0.73 0.73
Wind Power Charges paid 0.04 =
Purchase of Land 1.18 -
Sale of Land & Building 3.38 .
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.41 5
Unsecured Loan - Repaid - 0.04
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sl

Nature of transactions
No.

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

3 | Smt. Mageswari Kannan
Remuneration

Rent Free Accomodation
Interest Paid *

Dividend Paid

Purchase of Equity Shares
Unsecured Loan - Repaid
4 | Sri. Sounder Kannan
Remuneration

Dividend Paid

Interest Paid *

Purchase of Equity Shares
Unsecured Loan - Repaid
5 | Sri. D. Vijayanand
Remuneration

Purchase of Equity Shares
Dividend Paid

6 | Sri. 5.Ramesh

Remuneration

7 | Sri. Ramesh krishnan
Remuneration

8 | Sri. T.R. Sivaraman
Remuneration

9 | Sri. V. Marikannan
Remuneration

10| Sri. V. Balamurugan
Remuneration

11| Smt. Lakshmi Vijay Anand
Salary

Purchase of Equity Shares
Dividend Paid

12| Smt. Monaa Kannan
Salary

Purchase of Equity Shares
Dividend Paid

13| Ms. M. Jayalalitha

Salary

Dividend Paid *

14| Sri. M. Sukumar

Salary

Dividend Paid

15| Sri. A.M.Gopinath (Prop. Anugraha International)
Commission Paid

16| Sri. R. Hemakumar
Salary

17| Sri. R. Ragavendar
Salary

18| MNaga Mills Limited
Rental Income *

Dinwinn Farms LLP
Purchase of Agri Product
Freight Income Received *

0.90

0.26"
0.33

0.96
0.14

0.33

0.96
0.03
0.01
0.18
0.09
0.23
0.16
0.02
0.46
0.19
0.09
0.33

0.03
0.01

0.34

0.08
0.04

0.02

0.90
0.07
0.00
0.25
0.07
0.91
0.14
0.00
0.09
0.91
0.01

0.02

0.38
0.09
0.25
0.01

0.38
0.01

0.27
0.01

0.14

0.00

0.01
0.00
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s, MNature of transactions As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
20| Kovil agencies

Sale of Wheat - 0.13

Sale of Minerals - 0.08

Rental Income * 0.00 0.00
21| Kovil Cereals Private Limited '

Rental Income * 0.00 -
22| Naga Marine Industries Limited

Purchases - 207.05

Rent Paid - 0.16

Rental Income * - 0.00

Dividend Paid - 0.04

Freight Income Received . 0.30
23| Nagalakshmi Charitable Trust

Sale of Wheat Products - 0.02

Donation Paid 0.17 0.16

Medical Camp Charges Paid 0.06 0.05

24| Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Associate company
- April-2022 to August-2022)

Freight Charges Paid 0.23 0.54
Wind Power Charges paid 0.42 0.76
Rental Income * 0.00 0.00

Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Subsidairy company|
- September-2022 to Nov-2022)

Freight Charges Paid 0.14 -
Wind Power Charges paid 0.20 -
Investment 3.00
Rental Income * 0.00
Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Post Merger)
Freight Charges Paid 0.18
Wind Power Charges paid 0.20
Rental Income * 0.00

25| M.M.Detergents Company Private Limited
Purchases 404.21 146.92
Pental Income * 1.54 0.00
Rent Paid 0.31 0.10
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.85 .
Sale of Land | 0.20
Dividend Paid 0.16 0.12
Freight Income Received 3.20 0.29

26| Pluris Global Holding India Limited
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.13

27 | Lakme Investment and Finance Limited
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.13

28| Nutri Snack LLP
Purchase 0.01
Service Charges Paid 0.06
Purchase of Assets 0.01

Notes:

1. Post employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not separately
provided.

*Value are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
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Maga Limited

CIN : U24246TN1991PLC0O20409

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023
[ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

c) Balances at the end of the year

Sl
Nature of transactions As at As at

No. March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022
1 Sri. K.S. Kamalakannan
Unsecured Loans -
Remuneration payable 0.05° 0.05

2 | Smt. Mageswari Kannan
Unsecured Loans - -
Remuneration payable 0.03 0.05

3 | Sri. Sounder Kannan
Unsecured Loans i 2
Remuneration payable 0.05 0.05

4 | 5ri. D. Vijay Anand
Remuneration payable 0.06 0.07

5 | Sri. 5. Ramesh
Remuneration payable 0.01 0.01

6 | Naga Mills Private Limited
Loans Receivable - 0.48

Expenses recoverable 0.06 0.09

7 | Naga Far East Private Limited
Expenses recoverable 0.02 0.02

8 | M.M.Detergents Company Private Limited

Advance Paid - 6.69
Rent Receivable = -
Trade Receivable 0.32 -
Trade Payable 7.58 0.05

9 | Nagalakshmi Charitable Trust
Trade Receivable * - 0.00

10| Dinwinn Farms LLP
Trade Receivable - 0.01

*Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
Note : The transactions which arose exclusively on account of the merger are not shown here as the
company has not entered into such transactions. Hence those are not reported in AOC 2 also. -
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

51. Scheme of Merger

Description of Scheme of Amalgamation of Naga Limited (Transferee Company) and Annai Power Private
Limited (Transferor Company No.1), Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Transferor Company No.2),
Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited (Transferor Company No.3) and their respective Shareholders and
Creditors

During the current year, the company has made additional investment in the trahsferor companies and
holds 100% shares of the said transferer companies. Additional investment details are as follows:

(i) Annai Power Private Limited - Rs.1.78 Crores
(i) Nagalakshmi Energy Private limited - Rs.3.07 Crores
(iii) Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited - Rs.0.57 Crores

The Regional Director, Chennai, on April 12, 2023, sanctioned the Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme")
between Annai Power Private Limited (Transferor Company No.1), Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited
(Transferar Company No.2), Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited (Transferor Company MNo.3) with Naga
Limited (Transferee Company) approved by their respective Shareholders and Creditors for the merger
of the Company. Both companies have filed the certified copies of the RD Order sanctioning the
Scheme on 27.04.2023 with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu. Pursuant to the Scheme becoming
effective, the entire undertaking and business of transferor companies would be transferred and vested
with and into the Naga Limited.

As per the clarification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Circular no.09/2019 dated August
21, 2019 (MCA Circular), the Company has recognized the effect of the merger on December 01, 2022,
and made the following adjustments, pursuant to the Scheme.

(i) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor comapnies have been transferred to Naga Limited
(Transferee company).

(i) Difference between the value of transferred assets and liabilities pertaining to the transferor
company amounting to Rs.2.65 Crores have been adjusted to the reserves.

The Impact of the Merger on these financial statements is as under:

The whole of the assets and liabilities of transfereor companies became the assets and liabilities
of transferee company

Particulars As at November 30, 2022
Nagalakshmi |Dindigul Foods
Assets
Assets Transferred R iee Energy Private| Park Private
Limited Limited

Property, plant and equipment 18.03 3.13 0.78
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 1.00 5
Trade receivables - 0.08 -
Cash and cash equivalents 0.04 0.04 0.01
Current tax assets (net) * 0.00 0.00

Other current assets 0.04 0.06

Total Assets transferred to Naga Limited (A) 18.11 4.31 0.80




2 RSSO
B - Nl
A

-’-(CHFNNAI Y
[ 4
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CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars As at November 30, 2022
p— Nagalakshmi |Dindigul Foods
Liabilities Transferred Haratoriad Energy Private| Park Private
Limited Limited

Long Term Borrowings 9.61 0.09

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 0.17 ! .
Short Term Borrowings 5.31 3.97 0.23
Trade payables 0.20 0.01 -
Other financial liabilities * 0.05 0.02 0.00
Total Liabilities transferred to Naga Limited (B) 15.34 4.08 0.23

*Value are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

Adjustment to Reserve

As per Para 14 of the Order, the difference between the book value of the assets and liabilities
transferred to the Naga Limited ( net of investment) has been debited to the Capital Reserves of the
Company on the Appointed date i.e December 01, 2022

Magalakshmi |Dindigul Foods
Assets :
Particulars Hansterred Energy Private| Park Private
Limited Limited
Total Assets transferred to Naga Limited (A) 18.11 4.31 0.80
Total Liabilities transferred to Naga Limited (B) 15.34 4.08 0.23
Investment by Naga Limited (C) 2.40 3.10 0.70
Adjustment to Reserve (A-B-C) 0.37 (2.87) (0.14)
52. Ratio Analysis and its elements
a) Ratio
As at As at iri:r?:
Particulars March 31,/March 31, Remarks
2023 | 2022 |2V22to
FY 22-23
(a) Current Ratio 0.97 1.04 -6% | -
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio 1.78 1.51 18% | -
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.1 1.19 7% | -
(d) Return on Equity Ratio (%) 12.02% | 10.50% 14% | -
(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio 12.25 9.13 34% | Due to decrease in
Inventory
(f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio 25.55 32.29 -21% | -
(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio 17.60 16.23 B% | -
(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio 12.62 10.90 16% | -
(i) Net Profit Ratio (%) 0.56% 0.73% -23% | -
(j) Return on Capital Employed (%) 12.57% | 12.90% -3%
\k) Return on Investment (%) 7.07% 7.91% -11%




Naga Limited
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless atherwise stated )

b) Elements of Ratio

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Ratios Numerator Denominator
Numerator (Denominator| Numerator| Denominator
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets | Current Liabilities 224,07 | 230.92 283.78| 273.51
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Debt (LTB+CM)| Total Equity 296.90 | 166.38 | 240.14| 158.68
(c) Debt Service Caverage Ratio| EBITDA Debt (Principal+
Interest) 96.96 87.12 86.71 72.64
(d) Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the
year before
Tax Total Equity 20.00| 166.38 16.67 | 158.68
(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods
Sold Average Inventory |1,783.35| 145.59 [1,472.78| 161.30
(f) Trade Receivables Turnover |Revenue from | Average Trade
Ratio Operations Receivables 2,099.06 82.16 [1,728.96 53.55
(g) Trade Payables Turnover Purchases Average Trade
Ratio Payables 1,754.62 99.70 |1,459.31 89.91
(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio |Revenue from
Operations Total Equity 2,099.06( 166.38 |1,728.96| 158.68
(i) Net Profit Ratio Profit for the | Revenue from
year Operations 11.77 | 2,099.06 12.56 | 1,728.96
(j) Return on Capital Employed |[EBIT Total Assets -
Current Liabilities 54.42 | 432.96 46.65| 361.59
(k) Return on Investment Profit for the
year Total Equity 11.77 | 166.38 12.56| 158.68
53. Loans granted to Related Parties
Terms/ 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Loan granted Repayable| , . . . | Amount Amount
Type of Barrower 1nd1v1c.lu:llly or de;:n d repayment out:tta:r;.c:ng % of aut::ia:ing % of
witj: lgt: (Yes / Noy| 15 SPecified | balance [Total| balance | Total
ers (Yes / No) | sheet date sheet date
Naga Mills Private
Limited
(Subsidiary Company) Individually Yes Yes 0%| 0.48 100%
Total of Loan
(Refer Note No. 15) - 0.48

54 Details of Benami Property :

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the company for holding any Benami property.

55 Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed with banks or financial
institutions

Quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with banks consisting of inventory (excluding goods
in transit) and trade receivables aged less than 90 days are in agreement with the books of account
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All ampunts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

56. Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

57. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

L]
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond
the statutory period.

58. Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

59. Utilisation of borrowed funds and securities premium

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the
like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall: (a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) (b) Provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

60. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.

61. Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961).

62. Expenditure on Scientific Research eligible

As at As at
Nature March 31, March 31,

2023 2022

a) Revenue
Employee Benefit Expenses 1.67 0.90
Equipment Maintenace 0.06 0.14
Consumables 0.57 0.37
Travelling Expenses 0.15 0.02
Freight & Handling 0.02 - 0.01
Professional Charges 0.21 0.03
Other Expenses 0.10 0.11
) Capital Expenditure 3.05 26.76
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023
{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

63. Note on Social Security Code 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment
and post-employment, has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft
rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are
applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact ape also not yet issued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial
statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the
financial impact are published.

64. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
26th May, 2023.

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For M S K A & Associates — .
Chartered Accountants ‘_ kN\F_\ —_—
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W K.S. LAKANNAN MAGESWARI KANNAN
Br_ff-- Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director

GEETHA JEYAKUMAR DIN : 01601589 DIN : 021075 i
Partner i e .y s J .,»qit;/‘_ﬁ’-ff-__
Membership No: 029409 (5™~ T il /(@ i

o T.R. SIVARAMAN . BALAMURUGAN
Place: Dindigul Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date ;: 26" May, 2023 Membership No : 023228 Membership No : F12312




5, Main Building, Guna Complex

MSKA & Associates ﬂfﬁ'.\m. 443 R 445, Old No, 304 & 305, Anna Salai

Chartered Accountants Teynampet, Chennal 600018, INDIA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Naga Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Naga Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2023, of consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated Changes in Equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Sas are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of
Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI"), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Financial Highlights, Chairman’s Statement, Director’s Report along with
the annexures but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditer’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Head Uffice: 602 Floor &, Ralieja Titanm, Westerm Express Highway, Geetannli Raitway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel. «91 22 6238 U519
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 135(4) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable gnd prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors included in the Group are
responsible for assessing the ability of the respective companies included in the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the their respective companies or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing ("SAs”) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Other Matters

a. We did not audit the financial statements of two subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 0.55 crores as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs. NIL and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.
0.23 crores for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far
as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries are solely based on such unaudited financial statements. In our
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group.

b. All of these subsidiaries, are located outside India whose financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries. The Company’s
management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from
accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India,
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These conversion adjustments have not been audited. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and
affairs of such subsidiaries located outside India is based on management furnished financial statements and
the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Company. According to the information
and explanations given to us by the management of the Company, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, none of the directors are disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B",

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note no 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv, (1) The Managements of the Company have represented to us that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no 59 to consolidated financial statements that
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that such parties shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries “Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(2) The respective Managements of the Company have represented to us that, to the best
of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in note no 59 to consolidated financial statements
that, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
as on the date of this audit report, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and according to
the information and explanations provided to us by the Management of the Company in this
regard, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

v, On the basis of our verification, interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year
and until the date of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act 2013.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of accounts
using accounting software containing feature of recording audit trail facility is applicable for the
Company with effect from April 01, 2023. Accordingly, reporting under this clause is not applicable
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023

2. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company, to its directors is within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules
thereunder,

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports issued by us
for the Company, we report that there are no Qualifications/adverse remarks. Further CARO reporting
is not applicable for subsidiary companies included in Group as subsidiary companies are not
incorporated in India.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Loelio ¥
Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVN7747

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NAGA LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting frors error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No. 029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVN7747

Place: Dindigul
Date : May 26, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NAGA LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Naga Limited on the consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion ¢

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls reference to consolidated financial statements of
March 31, 2023 (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) and its subsidiary companies (the Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) which are companies incorporated outside India, as of that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company have,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“the ICAI").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls., Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statemets, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Company.

glaheta Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Rallway Colany, Ram Nagar, Garegaon (E), Mumbal 400063, INDIA, Tel: «91 22 6238 0519
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of interpal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

& V)
’M‘ g
Geetha Jeyakumar
Partner

Membership No.029409
UDIN: 23029409BGTMVN7747

Place: Dindigul
Date: May 26, 2023
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Naga Limited
CIM : U24246TN1991PLCOZ0409
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

{ All afnounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars

Motes As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current assets

(a) Property , Plant and Equipment
{h) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment Property
(d) Other intangible assets
(e) Right-of-use assets
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(g) Income tax assets (net)
(h) Other non-current assets

Total non - current assets
Current assets

(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank Balance other than (ii) above

(iv) Loans
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Other current assets
(d) Asset classified as held for sale

Total current assets
Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

Total equity
Liabilities
MNon- current Habilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(il) Lease liability

(ili) Other financial liability
(b) Long term provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total non - current labilities
Current Liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Berrowings
(il) Lease liability
(ii1) Trade payables

-total outstanding dues of micro and small

enterprises

-toial outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities

(b) Short term provisions

(c) Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

4 3119.80

5 57.11

4.b 10.89
& 0.91

4.a 18.81
7 1.63

8 10.61

9 2.41

10 15.03
439.20

11 126.71
12 75.34
13 3.35
14 5.85
15 0.86
16 0.29
17 9.05
18 3.05
224.50

663.70

19 14.25
20 151.80
166.05

21 239.37
22 6.18
23 2.09
24 3.25
25 15.69
266.58

26 102.31
22 1.59
27 0.89
27 97.55
28 15.93
24 1.40
29 11.40

497.65

T 663.70

283.72
21.12
10.27

1.13
7.23

1.58
9.89
1.24
12.51
350.69

164.47

B8.99
3.68
4.98
0.44
0.87

20.72

184.15
634.84

14.25
144.15

183.70

2.45
2.73
14.03
202.91

145.59

4,46

96.61
11.07
1.04
14.76
273.53
476.44
634.84

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms
For M S

of our report attached
K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W

Uotra, %

GEETHA JEYAKUMAR

Partner

Membership No: 029409

Place: Dindigul
Date : 26" May, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K.S. KAMALAKANNAN
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN : 01601589

—
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]

T.R. SIVARAMAN
Chief Financial Officer
Membership No : 023228

MAGESWARI KANNAN
Joint Managing Director
DIN : 02107556

é%mmunucm

Company Secretary
Membership No : F12312




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC0O20409
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

( All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars Notes " march 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

Income:
I Revenue from operations 30 2,099.06 1,728.96
1] Other income 31 7.09 3.25
Il Total income (I +11) 2,106.15 1,732.21

L]

IY  Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 32 1,771.64 1,387.27

Purchases of stock-in-trade 33 20.75 65.71

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

Work-in-Progress and stock-in-trade 34 (9.03) 19.80

Employee benefits expenses 35 74.07 55.52

Financial costs 36 34.42 29.99

Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 42.54 36.97

Other expenses 38 151.90 120.31

Total expenses 2,086.29 1,715.57
V  Profit before share of profit of equity accounted

investees and tax (Il - V) 19.86 16.64
VI  Share of profit of Associates 0.19 0.19
Vil Profit Before Tax (V + VI ) 20.05 16.83
Vil Tax Expenses / (Credit):

- Current tax 4.76 3.07

- MAT Credit recognized - (3.07)

- Deferred tax 2.23 4.31
IX  Profit for the year ( VIl - VIII ) 13.06 12.52
X  Other comprehensive income /(loss) Item that will not be

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

(a) Re-measurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit obligations (0.81) 0.27

(b) Changes in fairvalue of Investments measured at FVTOCI (0.18) -

(c) Income tax effect on above (0.25) (0.07)

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income, net of tax (1.24) 0.20
Xl  Total comprehensive Income for the year 11.82 12.72
Xl Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (Face value of Rs. 10 each)

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 39 9.17 B.79

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 39 9.17 8.79

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For M 5 K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No. 105047W K.S. LAKANNAN
, s Chairman and Managing Director
GEETHA JEYAKUMAR DIN : 01601589
:ﬂﬁrship No: 029409 _—— J RS-~
: 2 T.R. SIVARAMAN
Place: Dindigul Chief Financial Officer

Date :

26™ May, 2023 Membership No : 023228

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

MAGESWARI KANNAN
Joint Managing Director

DIN : 02107556

. BALAMURUGAN
Company Secretary
Membership No : F12312
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023
{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit before tax 19.86 16.83
Adjustments for :

Depreciation and amortization expenses 42.53 . 36.97
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of property ,plant and equipment (net) (4.00) 0.00
Interest income (0.80) (0.75)
Provision for doubtful debts & advances 0.91 0.60
Bad debts written off 0.1 1.05
Unrealised net (gain)/ loss on foreign currency transactions and

translations 0.64 (0.19)
Rental income from Investment property (2.17) (1.52)
Loss on fair valuation of investments carried at FVTPL 0.00 0.93
Finance cost 34.42 29.99
Operating profit before working capital changes " 91,50 ~ 83.91
Movement in Working Capital:

(Increase) / Decrease in Other financial assets (3.11) 0.72
Decrease in Inventories 37.77 23.90
Decrease/ (Increase) in Trade receivables 12.54 (39.99)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other assets 10.99 (8.97)
Decrease in Other financial liabilities 5.76 1.29
Increase in Lease liability 7.77 -
(Decrease) / Increase in Other liabilities (3.58) 8.79
(Decrease) in trade payables (3.55) (0.02)
Increase in provision for Gratuity and compensated absences 0.89 1.34
Cash Generated from operations T 156.98 7097
Income tax paid (net of refund) (6.28) (2.21)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 150.70 68.76
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (107.93) (66.30)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets 4.85 0.43
Advance received for Sale of land 0.56 -
Interest income 0.80 0.75
Purchase of Additional stake in merged entities (5.42) -
Purchases of Investments (0.87) (1.70)
Rental income on lease arrangements 2.17 1.52

Bank Balance not considered as cash and cash equivalents :
- Deposits matured (net) 2.1 . 217
(103.73) (63.13)




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year ended For the Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

(Repayment of)/ Proceeds from short term borrowings (46.88) 35.97
Proceeds from / (repayment of) long term borrowings 39.74 (8.01)
Decrease /(Increase) in loans given 0.04 ' (0.04)
Interest paid (38.78) (33.09)
Dividend paid (1.42) (1.42)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) T (47.30) T (6.59)
Net (decrease )/increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (0.33) (0.96)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.68 4,64
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year T 3.35 T 3.68
Notes:

1. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method prescribed in Ind AS 7
“Cash Flow Statements”.

2. Components of cash and cash equivalents,

Balances with banks - in current accounts 3.26 3.53
Cash on hand 0.09 0.15
3.35 3.68

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants 48 v‘—*’\_4*--._ )
ICAI Hrl'l'l Rﬁ'gistratiﬂn No. 105047wW K.S. LAKANNAN MAGESWARI KANNAN
sy Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
%W iy DIN : 01601589 DIN : 02107 X
GEETHA JEYAKUMAR ‘3" e g — ==
Partner
Membership No: 029409 T.R. SIVARAMAN . BALAMURUGAN
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Dindigul Membership No : 023228 Membership No : F12312

Date : 26" May, 2023




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

(A) Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of April 01, 2021 14.25

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance at the end of March 31, 2022 14.25

Changes in equity share capital during the year - ’

Balance at the end of March 31, 2023 14.25

(B) Other Equity

Capital
Particulars Cipiph] Reserye SP.T:L:;:S:"S geners) Retai.ned OCl | Total
Reserve|on account Reserve Reserve | Earnings
of merger

Balance as at March 31, 2021 0.11 - 1.36 3.34 128.45 |(0.44)|132.82
Additions/ (deductions) during the year . - - 0.21 (0.21) -

Total Comprehensive Income for the year . . 3 £ 12,52 | 0.20| 12.72
Earlier period times (0.08) (0.08)
Dividend paid . . d " (1.43) < (1.43)
Other foreign currency translation reserve - - - - 0.12 - 0.12
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.11 - 1.36 3:55 139,37 ((0.24)|144.15
Merger Adjustment (refer note no. 54) - (2.84) . - - -] (2.84)
Additions/ (deductions) during the year - . - 0.1 (0.21)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year . - - - 13.06 | (1.24)| 11.B2
Dividend paid - . : . (1.42) - (1.42)
Other foreign currency translation reserve c - : " 0.09 -| 0.09
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.11 (IE) 1.36 3.76 150.89 | (1.48) 151.80

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached r and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For M 5 K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants e =

ICAI Firm Registration No, 105047W K.S. AKANNAN MAGESWARI KANNAN
M ) Chairman and Managing Director Joint Managing Director
- DIN : 01601589 DIN : 02107556
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Partner TJ (LS~ =C = _ el
Membership No: 029409 ="
: T.R. SIVARAMAN V. BALAMURUGAN
Place: Dindigul Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Notes to the Financial statements
Group Background

Naga Limited (“Company”/ “Naga”) is a public limited company incorporated in India under the
Companies Act, 1956 and is domiciled in India. Its Registered Office is locatad at No 1, Anna Pillai
Street, Chennai - 600001 and the Corporate Office at No 1, Trichy Road, Dindigul-624005. The
Company's Equity Shares which were listed in the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India till
31.03.2021, were delisted with effect from 16.04.2021. The Company is engaged in the
manufacture of Wheat Products, Minerals, Detergents and in Power Generahtion. The Plants of the
Company are located in various places in and around Dindigul and its Power Generating windmills
are located in Coimbatore, Dharapuram, Theni and Tirunelveli.

Naga Limited, together with it subsidiaries and associates is hereinafter referred to as the Group.

Group's consolidated financial statements were approved by the Group's Board of Directors on June
01, 2022.

Company's subsidiaries are involved in business of trading of wheat, associates are involved in
business of power generation.

2. Significant Accounting Policies and key accounting estimates and judgments
Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.Group.

Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued Accounting
Standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in
the Accounting Policy hitherto adopted.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

Naga consolidates entities which it owns or controls. The Consolidated financial statements
cornprise the financial statements of the Company, its controlled entites and its subsidiaries, as
disclosed in Note 51.

Control and significant influence is assessed annually with reference to the voting power (usually
arising from equity shareholdings and potential voting rights) and other rights (usually contractual)
enjoyed by the Company in its capacity as an investor that provides it the power and consequential
ability to direct the investee's activities and significantly affect the Company's' returns from its
investment. Such assessment requires the exercise of judgement and is disclosed by way of a note
to the Financial Statements. The entity is considered not to be in control of entities where it is
unclear as to whether it enjoys such power over the investee.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Associates are entities over which the
Company exercise significant influence but does not control.

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiaries are aggregated and consolidated, line
by line, from the date control is acquired by any Group entity to the date it ceases. Profit or loss
each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the Group as owners and to
on-controlling interests. The Group presents the noncontrolling interests in the Balance Sheet



within equity, separately from the equity of the Group as owners. The excess of the Group's
investment in a subsidiary over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is
acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve in the CFS. On
disposal of the subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment loss, if any, to the
extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged off,to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
Cash Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUs to which it relates, which is not larger than an
operating segment, and is monitored for internal management purposes.

An investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost on the date of the investment, in the
Balance Sheet. The proportionate share of the Group in the net profits /losses as also in the other
comprehensive income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the carrying value of
the investment is adjusted by a like amount (referred as 'equity method’). All intragroup assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.3 Basis of Preparation and Compliance

Maga consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention except for certain items that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below. The financial statements are
prepared on a “going concern” basis using accrual concept except for the cash flow information.
Historical cost is generally based on fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimate using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability at the measurement date assuming the market participants
act in their economic best interest.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purpose in these financial statements is determined
on such basis and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2- Inventories or values in use in Ind AS 36-Impairment of
Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, as described
hereunder:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Group have
een reflected as '-' in these financial statements.



2.4 Current/Non-Current Classification

An asset or liability is classified as Current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

(a) The asset / liability is expected to be realized / settled in the Group's normal operating cycle;
(b) The asset is intended for sale or consumption;

(c) The asset / liability is held primarily for the purpose of trading; .

(d) The asset / liability is expected to be realized / settled within twelve months after the
reporting period;

(e) The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period;

(f) In case of a liability, the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets and liabilities are classified as Non- Current. For the purpose of Current / Non-
Current classification, the Group has reckoned its normal operating cycle as twelve months based
on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for
processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are classified as Non-Current. Advances given towards acquisition
of fixed assets, outstanding at each Balance Sheet date, are disclosed as other Non-current assets.

2.5 New Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, as below.

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022. The Group has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its consolidated financial
statements.

Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate
directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although
early adoption is permitted. The Group has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not
expected to be material.

2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, Plant and Equipment are tangible items that:

a) Are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
ministrative purposes: and



(b) Are expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment shall be recognised as an asset if and only if:

(a) It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and

(b) The cost of the item can be measured reliably. '
An item of PPE that qualifies for recognition as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost.

Following initial recognition PPEs are carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

(11) The cost of an item of PPE comprises of purchase price, taxes and duties net of input tax credit
entitlement and other items directly attributable to the cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted. Cost includes cost of
replacing a part of a PPE if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses directly attributable to new
manufacturing facility during its construction period are capitalized if the recognition criteria are
met. Expenditure related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is
capitalized under relevant heads of PPE if the recognition criteria are met.

Borrowing cost (net of interest earned on temporary investments of those borrowings) directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as a
part of the cost of the assets till the assets are substantially ready for its intended use.

(iif) The Group identifies and determines the cost of each part of an item of PPE separately, if the
part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of that item of PPE and has useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining item.

(iv) Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the
definition of PPE are capitalized at Cost. Costs in nature of repairs and maintenance are
recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. All up gradation /
enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure unless they bring significant additional
benefits.

(v) Capital advances and Capital Work-in-Progress

Advances given towards acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment outstanding at each Balance
Sheet date are disclosed as Other Non-Current Assets. Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as
on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as Capital Work-in-Progress. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of PPE when completed and ready for intended use.

(vi) Depreciation of PPE

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on
written down value (WDV) method in respect of Soaps & Detergents Division at Vedasandur and
under the straight line method in respect of other divisions. Depreciation is provided based on
useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Asset Years
~ Factory Building and Roads 10 - 30
Electrical and Installations 5-10

Plant and Equipment 1-15




Vehicles 1-15

Desktop Computers & Laptops 1-10
Furniture and Fixtures 1-10
Office Equipments 1-10
Solar and Wind Power Generation Plant 22

Assets costing Rs. 5,000/- and below are depreciated in full within the Financial Year.
2.7 Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building—or part of a building—or both) held (by the
owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes
or sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property shall be recognized as an asset when, and only when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity;
and the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably. An investment property shall be
measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs shall be included in the initial measurement. An
investment property shall be derecognized (eliminated from the balance sheet) on disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposal.

2.8 Intangible Assets
a) Intangible Assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life is reviewed annually
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

b) Useful lives of Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are amortised equally over the estimated useful life,
2.9 De-recognition of tangible and intangible assets

An item of tangible and intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of tangible and intangible assets is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.10 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group annually reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
———_corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are
bo—L allocated to the smallest group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the
recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. When an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that tpe increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
of loss been recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
impairment of loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.11 Revenue Recognition

Effective from 1st April, 2018 the Group has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”.

(a) Sale of products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time upon transfer of control of the products to customers i.e.,
when the products are delivered to the common carrier, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products.

The Group accounts for volume discounts and pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of
revenue based on the actual underlying performance obligation that corresponds to the progress by
the customer / indentor towards earning the discount / incentive.

(b) Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and using effective interest rate
method.

(c) Insurance Claims

Insurance claims are recognized on the basis of c'aims admitted / expected to be admitted and to
the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

(d) Rental Income / Warehousing Charges

Rental income and warehousing charges from operating leases are recognized on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in
cost of inflation index.

2.12 Ind AS 115- Revenue from contracts with customers

The standard is notified on 28.03.2018 and it is applicable for the accounting periods commencing
on or after 01.04.2018 and accordingly your Group has adopted this standard.

2.13 Inventories

Inventaries including traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Materials
d other items intended for use in the production of inventories are not written -down below cost
he finished goods in which they will be incorporated or expected to be sold at or above cost.
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Cost includes taxes and duties (other than taxes and duties for which input tax credit is available),
freight and other direct expenses. Stocks of Raw materials, Stores & Spares, Packing Materials and
chemicals are valued at cost on First in First Out. Finished Goods / Stock-in-Progress are valued at
lower of cost and net realisable value and cost includes material, direct labour, overheads (other
than selling and administrative overheads) incurred in bringing the inventory to their present
location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete, slow Fnoving and defective
inventories are periodically identified and provision is made where necessary.

2.14 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.15 Leases
As Lessor:

Group as lessor assess lease contract to operating lease or finance lease. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset. A lessor shall recognise lease payments from operating leases as
income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. The lessor shall apply another
systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use
of the underlying asset is diminished.

As Lessee:

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of a contract. Certain
lease contracts include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. The leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding lease liability at the
date on which the leased asset is available for use by the Group as a lessee except for payments
associated with short term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and low value leases, which are
recognized as an expense as and when incurred.

The Right-of-Use assets are initially recognized at cost comprising initial lease liability which
include lease payments made on or before the commencement date and discounted future less
payments. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The future lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. Lease liabilities are
re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related Right-of-Use assets if the Group
changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Right-
of-Use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
useful life of the asset Right-of use assets and lease liability have been separately presented in the

balance sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flow in the cash flow
statement




2.16 Employee Benefits
(a) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short term employee benefits and they are recognized in the period in which the employee
renders the related service. The Group recognises the undiscounted amount of Short Term
Employee Benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued
expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

(b) Post-employment benefits
(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Payments to Defined Contribution Retirement Benefit Plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Contributions to Provident
Fund and Superannuation Fund are treated as Defined Contribution Plans, since funded with
Provident Fund Commissioner (as per the provisions of the Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952) and Life Insurance Corporation of India, respectively.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

The Group operates the Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan for employees. The cost of providing defined
benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being
carried out at each reporting date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheet
represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of plan
assets, if applicable. Any defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit obligations resulting from
this calculation) is recognized representing the present value of available refunds and reductions in
future contributions to the plan. Gratuity and Retirement Benefit Schemes operated by the Group
are treated as Defined Benefit Plans. All expenses represented by current service cost, past service
cost, if any, and net interest on the defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability / ( asset ) comprising actuarial gains and
losses and the return on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit s liability / asset) , are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and taken to
retained earnings. (Such re-measurements are not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the subsequent periods). The Group presents the above liability / (asset) as current and non-
current in the Balance Sheet as per actuarial valuation by the independent Actuary, however, the
entire liability towards gratuity to employees (other than Directors) is considered as current as the
Group will contribute this amount to gratuity fund within the next twelve months.

(c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits
As per policy of the Group, compensated absence is not accumulated.
2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
_the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
rtainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
Wnated to settle the present obligations, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
Ws (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtual certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.18 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets afd financial liabilities
are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant
instrument and are initially measured at fair value. Transactions costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through statement of Profit and Loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL) are recognized
immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.19 Financial Assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place. All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

(a) Classification of financial Assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
The debt instruments carried at amortised cost includes Deposits, Loans and advances recoverable
in cash.

+ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

+ The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. All other financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value.

(b) Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Investment in Equity Instruments at FVYTOCI

(i) Investments in Equity Instruments in Subsidiaries and associates

=Jhe Group has elected to carry investment in equity instruments in subsidiaries and associates at

t in accordance with paragraph 10 of Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements.

(ii)| Investments in Other Equity Instruments



The Group has irrevocably designated to carry investment in Other Equity Instruments at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income. On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in Fair Value in
Other Comprehensive Income pertaining to Investments in Equity Instruments. This election is not
permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments were initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measuged at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in the 'Reserve for Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income'. On
derecognition of such Financial Assets, cumulative gain or loss previously reported in OCI is not
reclassified from Equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Group may transfer such
cumulative gain or loss into retained earnings within Equity.

The Group has Equity Investments which are not held for trading. The Group has elected the
FVTOCI irrevocable option for these investments (see Note 6). Fair value is determined in the
manner described in Note 2.2.

(d) Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses “Expected Credit Loss'(ECL) model, for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at fair value through Profit and Loss
(FVTPL).

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

- The 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default
events on the financial instruments that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

- Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the life of the financial instruments).

- For Trade receivable, Group applies “simplified approach” which requires expected life time
losses to be recognized from initial recognition of these receivables.

- For other assets, the Group uses 12 months ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no
significant increase in credit risk, if there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is
used.

(e) Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109, a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. Concomitantly, if the
asset is one that is measured at

(a) Amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income, the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to Reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset
represents an equity investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments previously
taken to reserves is classified within equity.

2.20 Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

(a) Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
ity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a
cial liability and an equity instrument.



(b) Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group are recognized at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(c) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at the value of respective contractual obligations.
Financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial
liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective
interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in
the” Finance costs” line item.

(d) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms , or the terms of an existing liability modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the Derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.21 Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange
rate risks, by means of foreign exchange forward contracts. Derivatives are initially recognized at
fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit and loss depends on the
nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item. The hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or
loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or
loss recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income is transferred to the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

2.22 Foreign Currency Transactions
Functional currency of the Group is determined as Indian National Rupee (INR).
(a) Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency (ie
Indian Rupees), by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency as at the date of the transaction.

(b) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date

Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items

that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate

at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured fair value in a foreign
urrency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.



(c) Recognition of exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period
or in previous financial statements is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in a foreign operation (having a functional currency other than Indian Rupee) are
accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve,

For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: (a) assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, together with goodwill and fair value adjustments assumed on acquisition thereof, are
translated to Indian Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting period end; (b) income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period; when
exchange rates fluctuate significantly the rates prevailing on the transaction date are used instead.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group is reclassified to the Statement
of Profit and Loss. In relation to a partial disposal, that does not result in losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate exchange differences accumulated in equity is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.23 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Group are segregated based on the available information.

2.24 Taxes on Income
Taxes on income comprise of Current Tax and Deferred Tax.
(a) Current Tax

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years (temporary
difference) and items that are never taxable or deductible (permanent difference) under the
Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws enacted during the
reporting period together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of
temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
affect neither the accounting profit nor the taxable profit, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
=probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
/differences can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of
sets or liabilities in a transaction that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

erred tax assets are not recognized.




The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the benefits of part of or all of deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted by the
Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. MAT Credit_Entitlement is in the
form of unused tax credits and is accordingly grouped under Deferred Tax Assets.

(c) Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly
in equity respectively.

2.25 Events after reporting period

Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at
the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the financial
statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material size of nature are only
disclosed.

2.26 Financial and Management Information System

The Group's Accounting System is designed to unify the Financial and Cost Records and also to
comply with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,2013 to provide financial and cost
information appropriate to the businesses and facilitate Internal Control.

2.27 Segment Reporting

The Group has the following reporting segments, which are considered as its reporting segments.
These segments offer different types of products to different customers and are managed
separately because they require different technology and production process. Operating segment
disclosures are consistent with the information provided to and reviewed by the Chief Operating
Decision Maker.

Reporting Segment Products Offered

Foods and Windmill Wheat Products and Power Generation
Minerals and Detergents various minerals and Detergents
2.28 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares..

3. Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements
3.1 Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and

“ASSCR ¢penses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uhcertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year is as given below.

(a) Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.

The Management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

(b) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment at the end of each
reporting period. During the current year, there has been no change in useful life considered for
the assets.

(c) Cash Discounts

In accordance with Ind AS 115, the Group deducts cash discounts from the revenue for sale of
products. Cash discounts on the sale of products in the last month of the year is estimated based
on the past experience.

(d) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Group's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss and in Other Comprehensive Income. Such valuation depend upon
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. Information about such
valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(e) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Group has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an
outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute
can be made based on management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and
relevant external advice, Management provides for its best estimate of liability. Such accruals are
by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty.
Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(f) Tax expense

Significant judgments and estimates are involved in estimating the budgeted profits for the
purposes of advance tax, determining the provision for income tax, Minimum Alternate Tax and MAT
Credit which may get revised pursuant to the determination by the Income Tax authorities.



4, Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the
standalone financial statements.

Ind AS B - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has
introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help
entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone
financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition
exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its
standalone financial statement.
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

4.a. Right of Use Assets

Right of Use Assets
RaTHCRMS Leasehold Land |Retail Outlets Tl
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 1.23 5 7.23
Additions 4.56 §.56 13.12
Disposals - - -
Cost as at March 31, 2023 11.79 8.56 20.35
Amortization
As at April 01, 2022 * - “ .
Charge for the year 0.38 1.16 1.54
Disposals - = -
As at March 31, 2023 0.38 1.16 1.54
Net Block
As at March 31, 2022 7.23 - 7.23
As at March 31, 2023 11.41 7.40 18.81
* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
4.b. Investment Property
: As at As at
G March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Carrying amount of:
Investment Property 10.89 10.27
Total 10.89 10.27
Investment Property
Cost
Gross Carrying amount as at beginning of the year 10.61 10.54
Additions 0.97 0.07
Closing balance as at end of the year 11.58 10.61
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated depreciation as at beginning of the year 0.34 0.34
Depreciation for the year 0.35 0.00
Closing balance as at end of the year 0.69 0.34
Net block 10.89 10.27

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property

As at As at
CATTicIa March 31, 2022 |March 31, 2021

Rental income derived from investment property L 247 1.52
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation

and indirect expenses 217 1.52
Less - Depreciation (0.35) (0.34)
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 1.82 1.18
Less - Indirect expenses (0.07) ©(0.14)
Profit from investment property 1.75 1.04




Naga Limited

CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement for vear ended March 31, 2023
( All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

5. Capital Work in Progress (CWIP)

As at March 31, 2023

a. CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Barticutars < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years Totai
Projects in Progress 53.10 0.78 1.67 «1.56 57.11
Projects temporarily suspended - . - . -
b. CWIP completion schedule for whose completion has exceeded original plan has been provided below.
To be completed in
Particulars < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years Total
Bakery Division 1.56 - - - 1.56
TOTAL 1.56 - - - 1.56
As at March 31, 2022
a. CWIP ageing schedule
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Earticutars < 1 Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years Tokat
Projects in Progress 10.19 9.37 s 1.56 21.12
Projects temporarily suspended - - - . 5
b. CWIP completion schedule for whose completion has exceeded original plan has been
provided below.
) To be completed in
Farticutags <1Year | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years|> 3 Years | 'Ot
Bakery Division 1.56 - * 1.56
TOTAL 1.56 . - - 1.56
6. Other Intangible Assets
Other Intangible Assets
Particulars Trade Mark Total
Software (Refer note
1 below)
Gross Block
As at April 01, 2022 1.77 0.26 2.03
Additions 0.03 0.05 0.08
Cost as at March 31, 2023 1.80 0.31 2.11
Amortization
As at April 01, 2022 0.90 - 0.90
Charge for the year ~ 0.30 - 0.30
As at March 31, 2023 1.20 - 1.20
Net Block
As at March 31, 2022 0.87 0.26 1.13
As at March 31, 2023 0.60 0.31 0.91

MNotes:
1. Trade Marks with carrying amount of Rs 0.26 crores has been considered as intangible with indefinite
useful life as there are no technical, technological or contractual limitations for the trade marks based on

— ©

£
p—
>

e ’(‘\ management assessment on March 31, 2023.

‘;}' ~the management has tested for impairment of trade marks as of 31 March, 2023 and concluded no
=| CHENNAI |“Ympairment to be recognized during the year.

w



Naga Limited
CIN : UZ4246TN1991PLCO20409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

( All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars As at March 2023 As at March 2022

7 Financial assets - Non-current investments
Trade Quoted
Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through profit and loss account (FVTPL)
400 (PY : 400) equity shares of a10/- each fully paid-up '
in Indian Overseas Bank * 0.00 0.00

Investments in Equity instruments measured at Fair Value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
4431 (PY : Nil) Equity Shares of 210/- each fully paid-up
in Life Insurance Corporation Of India 0.25

Trade Unquoted
Investments in Associate Companies (At Cost)
CY Nil (PY : 62400) Equity Shares of ©100/- each fully paid-up
in Annai Power Private Limited - 0.52
CY Nil (PY : 26,000) Equity Shares of 210/~ each fully paid-up
in Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited -
Investments in Equity instruments measured at Fair Value
through profit and loss account (FVTPL)
21,960 (PY : 21,960) Equity Shares of ©10/- each fully paid-up
in Mojro Technologies Private Limited 0.79 0.79

Investments in Equity instruments measured at FairValue
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
18,00,000 (PY : 13,50,000) Equity Shares of o10/- each fully paid-up

in Nellai Renewables Private Limited 1.81 1.36

CY Nil (PY : 1,33,000) Equity Shares of 810/- each fully paid-up

in Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited - 0.13

416 (PY : 416) Equity Shares of #10/- each fully paid-up

in AR VE EM Energy Private Limited * 0.00 0.00

1,800 (PY : Nil) Equity Shares of o10/- each fully paid-up

in Tutifood Private Limited 0.00 -
Total equity instruments (a) 2.85 2.80

Trade Unquoted
Investments in Preference share instruments measured at
FairValue through profit and loss account (FVTPL)

21,710 (31 March 2021: 21,710) Preference Shares of a10/-

each fully paid-up in Mojro Technologies Private Limited 0.78 0.78
Total preference instruments (b) 0.78 0.78
Total Investments (a+b) 3.63 3.58

Aggregate amount of quoted investments * 0.00 0.00

Aggregate market value of quoted investments - 5

Aggregate cost of unquoted investments 3.63 3.58

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Category wise Non-Current investments

Financial Assets measured at cost - 0.52
FVTPL 1.57 1.57
FVTOCI 2.06 1.49

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.



Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCOZ0409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amaunts are in Crores of INR, unless atherwise stated )

Particulars As at March 2023 As at March 2022

8 Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits 5.30 3.22
Rent deposits 2.58 t 0.96
Bank deposits maturing after 12 months from the reporting

date * 2.73 5.71
Total 10.61 9.89

* Represents balances with banks that are restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for more than
12 months from the balance sheetl date.

9 Income Tax Assets (Net)
Advance income-tax net of provision for tax of Rs. 4.76 Cr
(PY : Rs. 3.07 Cr ) 2.41 1.24
Total 2.41 1.24

10 Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, cansidered good)

Capital advances 13.72 11.90
Statutory and other deposits 1.31 0.61
Total 15.03 12.51

11 Inventories *
(At Lower of cost and Net realisable value)

Raw Materials 66.54 114.77
Raw materials-in-transit 1:19 ¢
Work-in-progress 8.42 6.83
Finished goods 28.73 22.38
Finished goods-in-transit 3.22 2.10
Packing materials 8.33 9.72
Stores and spares 10.28 8.67
Total 126.71 164.47

* For method of valuation please refer note no 2.13 and please refer Note 49 for security created cn
Inventories.

12. Financial Assets - Current : Trade receivables
At amortised cost
- Secured, considered good

- Unsecured, considered good * 75.34 88.99
- Unsecured, significant increase in credit risk 1.51 0.60

76.85 89.59
Less: Allowance for credit impairment (1.51) (0.60)
Total Trade Receivables 75.34 88.99

* Includes dues from M.M. Detergents Company Pvt. Ltd., Rs. 0.32 cr., a related party.
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Trade receivables Ageing Schedule
As on 31st March 2023

6
ot | Not| =<6 1-2 2-3 =3
Particulars N months Total
Billed | Due |/months years | years |years
to 1 year
Undisputed
- Trade Receivables - considered good 12.28 |[46.76| 11.33 2.04 2.25¢ 0.27| 0.41 | 75.34
- Trade Receivables - significant increase
in credit risk - - = - 0.35 0.56| 0.60| 1.51
12.28 46.76| 11.33 2.04 2.60 0.83| 1.01 |76.85
Less: Significant increase in credit risk - - - = |(0.35) | (0.56)|(0.60) [(1.51)
Less: Credit Impaired - B - - - - - -
Total 12.28 46.76| 11.33 2.04 2.25 0.27| 0.41 |75.34
As on 31st March 2022
6
No o < 1-2 2-3 >3
Particulars € | s 9 months Total
Billed| Due /months years | years |years
to 1 year]
Undisputed
- Trade Receivables - considered good 14.00 |22.51( 48.43 2.74 0.90 0.11| 0.30 | 88.99
- Trade Receivables - significant increase
n credit risk - - s - 0.25 0.12]| 0.23| 0.60
14.00 [22.51| 48.43 2.74 1.15 0.23| 0.53 |89.59
Less: Significant increase in credit risk . - - - [(0.25) | (0.12) |(0.23) | (0.60)
Less: Credit Impaired : - - - - - = *
Total 14,00 [22.51| 48.43 2.74 0.90 0.11| 0.30 |88.99

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

13 Cash and cash equivalents

- Balances with Banks In Current Account 3.26 3.53
- Cash- on- Hand 0.09 0.15
Total 3.35 3.68

14 Bank Balance other than cash and cash equivalents
In fixed deposits
In Margin money with Banks Maturing within 12 months from

the reporting date* 5.83 4.63
In Earmarked Accounts

Unpaid Dividend Account 0.02 0.02
Supplier Scheme Account . 0.33
Total ~ 5.85 T 4.98

* Represents deposits towards margin money for short term borrowings and non-fund limits.

Loans

(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and advances to employees 0.86 0.44
otal 0.86 0.44




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ ALl amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022

16 Other current financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good)

Intererest accrued but not due 0.23 0.08
MTM Assets on derivative contracts not designated through !

cash flow hedge 0.06 0.78
Total 0.29 0.87

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being nearest value.

17 Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

Gratuity assets (0.00) 0.21
Advance to suppliers 3.75 16.59
Balances with Government authorities 1.08

Prepaid expenses 4.22 3.92
Total ~9.05 T 20.72

18 Asset re-classified as held for sale

Gross value of asset held for sale:

Land 1.87
Buildings 1.81
Accumulated depreciation of asset held for sale:
Land
Buildings (0.63)
Net book value of asset held for sale ~3.05 e

19. Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2023 |As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares| Amount| No. of Shares| Amount

Particulars

Authorised Share Capital
4,36,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each 4,36,00,000 | 43.60 | 2,75,00,000 | 27.50
4,36,00,000 | 43.60 | 2,75,00,000 | 27.50
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
1,42,48,000 Equity Shares of Rs10/- each fully paid | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25
1,42,48,000 | 14.25 | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022

Particulars No. of Shares| Amount|No. of Shares| Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 | 1,42,48,000 | 14.25
= | Add : Issued during the year . % . -
\putstanding at the end of the year 1,42,48,000 | 14.25 |1,42,48,000 | 14.25




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLCO20409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

(b) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares of the total share capital

As at March 31, 2023|As at March 31, 2022
Name of the Shareholder Number of % of | Number of % of

shares held | Holding| shares held |Holding
Sri. K.S. Kamalakannan 72,52,377 |50.90% 72,52,047 |50.90%
Smt. Mageswari Kannan 25,63,538 |17.99% | ' 24,79,512 |17.40%
Sri. Sounder Kannan 13,17,327 | 9.25% 13,17,327 | 9.25%
M/s. M.M.Detergents Company (P) Ltd., 16,33,460 |11.46% 16,33,460 [11.46%
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand 8,57,152 | 6.02% 8,57,152 | 6.02%

(c) Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The equity shares of the Company having par-value of Rs.10/- per share rank pari-pasu in all respects
including voting rights, dividend entitlement and repayment of capital.

(d) Details of shares held by Promoters

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Name of the Promoters Number of| % of |% Change| Number of| % of %dCh?nue
shares held Holding t.ﬁ';",',ﬂﬁ, shares heldHolding th;",ﬂﬁ,
Sri. K.5. Kamalakannan 72,52,377| 50.90% 0.00% 72,52,047 | 50.90% 0.13%
M/s. K.5. Kamalakannan HUF 34,700 0.24% 0.00% 34,700 0.24% 0.00%
Smt. Mageswari Kannan 25,63,538| 17.99% 0.59% 24,79,512 17.40% 0.24%
Sri. Sounder Kannan 13,17,327| 9.25% 0.00% 13,17,327| 9.25%| -0.99%
M/s. Sounder Kannan HUF 37,800 0.26% 0.00% 37,800 0.26% 0.00%
Smt. Monaa Kannan 1,42,480| 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,480| 1.00% 1.00%
Sri. D. Vijay Anand 1,42,480 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,480| 1.00% 1.00%
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand 8,57,152| 6.02%| 0.00% 8,57,152| 6.02%| -0.99%
Ms. M. Jayalalitha 1,42,906 1.00% 0.00% 1,42,906| 1.00% 0.00%
Sri. M. Sukumar - 0.00% -0.51% 72,041 0.51% 0.01%
M/s. M.M.Detergents Company P.Ltd., 16,33,460( 11.46% 0.00% 16,33,460| 11.46% 3.12%
1,41,24,220( 99.12% 0.08% [1,41,11,905|99.04% 3.52%
—— As at As at
Ak March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
20. Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus
a) Capital Reserves 0.11 0.11
b) Capital Reserves on account of Merger (2.84) -
¢) Securities Premium Account 1.36 1.36
d) General Reserve 3.76 3.55
e) Retained Earnings 150.89 139.37
f) Other Comprehensive Income (1.48) (0.24)
Total 151.80 144.15
a) Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning and end of the year 0.11 0.1

b) Capital Reserve on account of Merger

Capital reserve on account of merger (refer note no. 54) (2.84) S
c) Securities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 1.36 1.36

-
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Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

As at As at

Particutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
d) General Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.55 3.34
Additions during the year 0.21 0.21
Deductions/Adjustments during the year " -
Balance at the end of the year 3.76 T 3.55
e) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 139.37 128.45
Net profit for the year 13.06 12.52
Transfers to General Reserve (0.21) (0.21)
Earlier Period Items (0.08)
Dividend paid during the year (1.42) (1.43)
Other foreign currency translation reserve 0.09 0.12
Balance at the end of the year 150.89 ~139.37
f) Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.24) (0.44)
Additions during the year (1.24) 0.20
Deductions/Adjustments during the year . -
Balance at the end of the year (1.48) (0.24)
Total 151.80 144.15

* During the year 2022-23, Company has declared and paid interim dividend @ Rs. 1 per share amounting
toRs. 1.42 Crs. (PY:Rs.1.43Crs)

21 Long Term Borrowings
Secured - At Amortized Cost

Term loans from Banks * 229.65 183.70
Loans from Financial Institutions * 3.29

Unsecured Loans from Related Parties ** 6.43 -
Total 239.37 183.70

Term loan from Banks are secured by lien on non-callable Fixed Deposits. The Company has also availed
working capital fzcilities and other non-fund Eased facilities viz. bank guarantees and buyers credit,
which are secured by hypothecation of current assets. Working capital loans and other non-fund based
facilities which is repayable on demand with interest rate ranging from 8.55% p.a to 9.00% p.a and term
loan interest ranging from 8.35% p.ato 10.50% p.a.

The outstanding excludes current maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No.26c).

* Refer Note 49 for security details.

** Represents loan availed from related parties @12% p.a, repayable after 12 months.
22 Lease Liability

a. Changes in the lease liability

Balance as at 1 April 2021 %
Recognised during the year

Lease Payments made during the year

Balance as at 31 March 2022 -
Recognised during the year 9.23
Lease Payments made during the year 1.46

Balance as at 31 March 2023 7.77




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409

Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

( All amounts are in Crares of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particulars

As at

As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

b. Break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Current Lease Liabilities 1.59 0.00
Non-current Lease Liabilities 6.18 0.00
c. Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Less than one year 1.59 « -
One to five years 3.56 -
More than five years 2.62 .
Total 7.77 0.00
d. Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss account
Interest on Lease Liabilities 0.67 -
Total 0.67 ___0.00
23  Other financial liabilities
Security Deposits 2.09 2.45
Total 2.09 2.45
24  Provisions
Non Current
Provision for gratuity - Directors 3.25 2.73
Total 3.25 2.73
Current ——
Provision for Compensated absences 1.28 1.04
Provision for Gratuity - Directors 0.12 0.00
Total 1.40 1.04
25. Deferred Tax Liability - Net
i As at | Adi.on ReFugnised As at
Particulars March 31, account| in P.&L ocl March 31,
2022 of during |[2022-23 2023
merger 2022-23
As at March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between written down value /
Capital Work in Progress of Fixed Assets as per
books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961. 19.01 1.29 - 20.30
Expenses allowed on payment 0.20 0.09 0.25 0.54
Total (1) 19.21 - 1.38 0.25 20.84
Defer ax
Expenses allowed on payment 1.05 - 0.43 1.48
Expenses allowed on FairValue change on
financial instruments classified under FVTPL 0.21 - 0.21
Provision for doubtful debts 0.15 - 0.24 - 0.39
Carry forward losses 0.69 0.83 (1.52) -
Total (II) B __2.10 0.83 | (0.85) - 2.08
| Deferred Tax Liability (Net) (I-1) 17.11 | (0.83) 2.23 0.25 | 18.76
MAT Credit Entitlement (3.07) - - & (3.07)
14.04 - 2.23 0.25 15.69




Naga Limited
CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Particiilars As at March Ri:f:t’:‘:;“ OCl | As at March
31, 2021 2021-22 2021-22| 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Difference between written down value / ¢
Capital Work in Progress of Fixed Assets as per
books of accounts and Income Tax Act, 1961, 13.55 5.46 - 19.01
Expenses allowed on payment 0.13 . 0.07 0.20
Total 13.68 5.46 0.07 19.21
Deferred Tax Assets
Expenses allowed on payment 0.96 0.10 - 1.06
Expenses allowed on FairValue change on
financial instruments classified under FVTPL . 0.21 - 0.21
Provision for doubtful debts X 0.15 é 0.15
Carry forward losses - 0.69 ? 0.69
Total 0.96 115 - 2.1
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12.72 4.31 0.07 17.10
MAT Credit Entitlement - (3.07) - (3.07)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12.72 1.24 0.07 14.03
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
26 Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:
Borrowings**
a) Secured - At Amortised Cost
Loans repayable on demand from banks * 36.82 65.22
b) Buyers Credit 7.97 23.93
c) Current Maturities of Long term Borrowings 57.52 56.44

10231 145.59
The loans have been utilized for the purpose for which it were obtained and no short term funds
have been used for long cterm purpose.
* Secured by pari-passu charge on inventories & trade receivables and are repayable on demand.
** Secured by personal guarantees of some of the Directors of the Company.

27. Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:
iii. Trade Payables
At amortised cost

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.89 4.46
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises 97.54 96.61

Total 98.43 101.07
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Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

- Not | <112 ] 237 >3] _
aruculars Due | year |years | years | years| 'O

As on 31st March 2023
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises -| 0.89 “le - -1 0.89
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 70.56 | 26.75| 0.02| 0.04| 0.17| 97.54

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises -

Total 70.56 (27.64| 0.02| 0.04| 0.17| 98.43

As on 31st March 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and

small enterprises -| 4.46 - - <] 4.46
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises 74.86|20.89| 0.61| 0.17| 0.08| 96.61

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - . -

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and
small enterprises

Total 74.86|25.35| 0.61| 0.17| 0.08 |101.07

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the
Company:

As at As at

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year:

Principal 0.89 4.46
Interest : .
Total 0.89 4.46

(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of

section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the

payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

during each accounting year.

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of

delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the year) but without adding

the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at

the end of each accounting year.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable

even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise,

po50 | for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
_""'5""{;\ nder section 23 of the MSMED Act.
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( All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

28 Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities:
Other financial liabilities
At amortized cost

Security Deposits 0.13 , 0.31
Capital Creditors 1.44 2.77
Employee related payables 6.60 4,90
Provision for Expenses 7.74 3.07
Unclaimed /Unpaid dividends 0.02 0.02
Total —15.93 _11.07
29 Other current liabilities
Advances received for supply of goods 3.93 11.96
Advance received for non-current asset held for sale 0.56 0.00
Provision for Gratuity - Employees 0.35 0.00
Statutory dues payable to government authorities 6.56 2.80
Total 11.40 14.76

30 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Manufactured Products

Wheat and Food Products 1,022.30 841.94
Minerals 1,036.44 798.21
Traded Goods

Wheat and Food Products 20.53 71.31
Minerals 0.11 0.58
Total sale of products (a) 2,079.38 1,712.04

Other Operating Income

Windmill Income 0.17 0.21
Warehousing Charges 2.74 1.61
Sale of scrap 10.06 11.61
Inceine from Plant & Machinery and Vehicles 6.21 3.46
Export Incentive Income 0.50 0.03
Total other operating income (b) T 19.68 16.92
Total (c) 2,099.06 1,728.96

Sale of products: Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is
transferred to the customer and payment is generally due as per the terms of contract with customers.
31 Other income

Interest Income from Deposits with banks etc. -

carried at amortized cost 0.80 0.75
Profit on sale of PPE (net) * 4.00 0.00
Rent Receipts 2.25 1.52
Mark to markup gain on forward contracts 0.03 - 0.86
.Other Misc. Income** . i 0.01 0.12
Total 7.09 3.25

*Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

v
/’F\n **Other misc. income includes write back of Bad Debts, return journey income.
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

32 Cost of materials consumed

Wheat and Food Products 826.94 695.83

Minerals 944.70 691.44

Total 1,771.64 , 1,387.27
33 Purchases of Stock in Trade

Wheat and Food Products 20.75 65.71

Minerals - .

Total 20.75 65.7

34 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in
trade and finished goods
Opening Stock
Work-in-Progress

Wheat and Food Products 6.83 8.46
Minerals 0.00 24,85
Finished Goods

Wheat and Food Products 11.08 6.34
Minerals 13.39 11.46
Total (a) 31.30 51.11

Closing Stock
Work-in-Progress

Wheat and Food Products 8.42 6.83
Minerals 0.00

Finished Goods

Wheat and Food Products 16.02 11.09
Minerals 15.89 13.39
Total (b) 40.33 31.31
Total (a-b) (9.03) 19.80

35 Employee benefits expenses *

Salaries, wages and bonus 62.83 46.35
Contribution to provident and other funds 4.60 3.20
Staff Welfare Expenses 2.47 2.20
Directors' Remuneration 4.17 377
Total 74.07 55.52

* Employee benefit expense is net of Employee cost capitalised of Rs.1.84 Cr (PY Rs. 1.41 Cr)

16 Finance Cost *

Interest Paid - Banks 31.31 27.36
- Lease Liability 0.67 -
- Financial Institution - 0.74
- Buyers Credit 0.58 - 0.39
- Others 0.85 - 0.02
Other Borrowing Cost 1.01 1.48
Total 34,42 29.99

* Finance cost is net of Interest capitalised of Rs.4.34 Cr (PY Rs. 3.10 Cr)
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulary March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

37 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 40.70 36.68
Amortization of Intangible assets 0.30 0.29
Amortization of Right of use assets * 1.54 0.00
Total 42.54 36.97

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
38 Other expenses
Manufacturing Expenses

Production Expenses 18.94 16.69
Power and Fuel 22.13 17.60
Repairs to Machinery 13.47 10.54
Laboratory Expenses 3.27 2.20
(A) 57.81 47.03
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Advertisement 6.98 5.74
Brokerage and Commission 1.17 1.17
Discount & Claims and Settlement 3.28 1.71
Sales Promotion 3.74 1.42
Freight and Handling 39.55 32.32
(B) 54.72 42.36
Establishment Expenses
Repairs and Maintenance - Buildings 2.04 1.96
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 4.21 3.78
Bank Charges and Commission 0.43 0.66
Loss on Foreign Currency Fluctuation 0.64 0.68
Provision for doubtful debts 0.91 0.60
Bad debts written Off 0.1 1.05
Printing & Stationery and Communication 1.63 1.02
Professional Charges 4.19 2.53
Payments to auditors [Refer note 40] 0.20 0.15
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.04 0.04
Donations 0.28 0.67
Travelling Expenses 6.92 3.40
Insurance, Rates, Licence and Taxes 5.54 4.25
Rent & Electricity 7.54 6.08
CSR Expenses [Refer note 41] 0.47 0.33
Windmill Expenses 2.33 1.36
Net gain / (loss) arising on financial instruments
mandatorily measured at FVTPL 0.00 0.93
Miscellaneous Expenses * 1.89 __1.43
(C) 39.37 30.92
Total Other Expenses (A+B+C) 151.90 120.31

* Miscellaneous expenses consists of Security Charges, Pooja Expenses & subscription Expenses.
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

39 Earnings per share (EPS)

Net Profit after tax for the year 13.06 12.52
Basic earnings per share (Rs. 10/-)

Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding 1.42 1.42
Nominal value of ordinary shares (Rs. Per share) 10.00 ° 10.00
Basic earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. Per share) 9.17 B.79
Diluted earnings per share (Rs. 10/-)

Weighted average no. of ordinary shares outstanding 1.42 1.42
Nominal value of ordinary shares (Rs. Per share) 10.00 10.00
Diluted earnings for ordinary shares (in Rs. Per share) 9.17 8.79

40 Payment to auditors
As statutory auditors :

Statutory Audit Fees 0.15 0.13
Tax audit fees 0.01 0.01
Fees for other services 0.04 0.01
Total 0.20 0.15
41 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
a) Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate Social
Responsibility during the year
(i) Brought Forward (1.74) (1.40)
(i) During the year 0.47 0.33
Total 1.27 1.07
b) Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction and/ or acquisition of any asset . 0.67
(i) Other purposes [other than (i) abave] . -
- 0.67
c) Closing amount over spent as at March 31, 2023 (1.27) (1.74)
d) Nature of C5R activities
- Installation of Oxygen Plant in Government Hospital - 0.67
42 Income tax expense
(a) Major Components of Income Tax Expenses
Current tax
Current tax on the Taxable Income for the year 4.76 3.07
MAT Credit availed - (3.07)
4.76 - -
Deferred tax o
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Refer Note 25) 2.23 4.31
2.23 4.31
Total 6.99 4,31
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Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
( All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

b) Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the Accounting
Profit for the year is as under :

Enacted income tax rate in India applicable to the Company 25.17% 25.17%

Profit Before Tax 19.86 , 16.64

Current tax expense on profit before tax at the enacted

Income Tax rate in India 5.00 4.19

Tax effect of the amounts which are not deductible/

(taxable) in calculated taxable income - 0.41

Effect on differential tax rate for fair value changes on

financial instruments - 0.04

Others 1.99 (0.33)

Total 6.99 4,31
43 Foreign exchange earnings & Expenditure

Foreign exchange earnings 8.05 12.52

Foreign exchange Expenditure 34.96 44.42
44 Expenditure in foreign currency

Interest 0.63 1412

Professional / Technical Fees 2.15 -

Total 2.78 1:12

45, Contingent liabilities and Commitments

a) Contingent Liability
1. Disputed Electricity Tax-Pending before Hon'ble

Supreme Court 1.00 0.86
2. Disputed Electricity Tax-Pending before Hon'ble Madras

High Court 0.10 0.05
3. Deemed Demand (Power Purchase) pending before

Hon'ble Madras High Court 0.17 0.17
4. Disputed PF payables pending before Hon'ble Madras

High Court 0.91

5. Disputed Windmill banking adjustments pending before

Hon'ble Madras High Court . 0.26
6. Export obligations pending to be completed - 1.04

In respect of above matters, future cash outflows in respect of contingent liabilities are
determinable only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. The Company is contesting these demands and the
Management, including its advisors, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the appellate
process.

No expense has been accrued in the stand alone financial statements for the demands raised. The
Management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

a) Commitments
1. Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be
executed on Capital account not provided for 9.75 55.35
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46. Operating Segments

The Company is engaged in the business of ‘'Wheat Products, Minerals, Detergents and in Generation of
Power” and has two reportable segment. As per Ind As 108 “Operating Segments” the same is
presented as part of Consolidated Financial Statement.

Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
Segment Revenue:
(a) Foods & Windmill 1,060.26 928.13
(b) Minerals & Detergents 1,038.80 800.83
(c) Unallocated Income i i
Net Income from Operations 2,099.06 1,728.96
Segment Results:
(a) Foods & Windmill 40.28 34.18
(b) Minerals & Detergents (0.23) 14.69
Total 40.05 48.87
Less : Interest & Finance Charges 34.42 29.99
Less : Other net unallocable Income / (Expenses) (14.43) 2.05
Total Profit Before Tax 20.06 16.83
Segment Assets:
(a) Foods & Windmill 423.53 404.33
(b) Minerals & Detergents 190.97 200.48
(c) Unallocated Assets 49.19 30.03
Total Segment Assets 663.69 634.84
Segment Liabilities:
(a) Foods & Windmill 321.44 3N
(b) Minerals & Detergents 122.18 140.21
(c) Unallocated Liabilities 54,02 22.52
Total Segment Liabilities 497.64 476.44

47. Lease arrangements
As Lessor
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements
for certain surplus facilities. The leases are cancellable at the
option of either party to lease and may be renewed based on
mutual agreement of the parties.
Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 2.17 1.52

48. Financial Instruments
Capital Management

The Company adheres to a cautious Capital management that seeks to trigger growth creation and
maximisation of shareholders' value. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital
includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has been funding its growth and acquisition plans and working capital -requirements
through a balanced approach of internal accruals and external debt from banks. The Company monitors
he capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the over all debt
ponent of the Company.
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The Following table summarises the capital of the Company:
Share Capital 14.25 14.25
Other Equity 151.80¢ 144.15
Equity (A) 166.05 158.40
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.35 3.68
Other Bank Balances 5.85 4.98
Total Fund (B) 9.20 8.66
Debt (CM + LTL+STL) 341.68 329.29
Total Debt (C) 341.68 329.29
Net Debt (D=C-B) 332.48 320.63
Total Capital (Equity + Net Debt) 498.53 479.03
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (No of Times) (E=D/A) 2.00 2.02
Categories of Financial Instruments i
Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 75.34 88.99
Cash and cash equivalents 3.35 3.68
Bank balances other than above 5.85 4,98
Loans given (current) 0.86 0.44
Others 10.90 10.76

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investments (non-current) 1.57 1.57
c. Measured at Cost
Investments (non-current) - 0.52
d. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Investments (non-current) 2.06 1.49
Financial liabilities

a. Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings (Non-current) 239.37 183.70
Borrowings (Current) 102.31 145.59
Trade payables 98.44 "101.07
Lease liability 7.77

Others 18.02 13.52
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless atherwise stated )

Financial risk management

Objectives and Policies

The Company'’s financial liabilities comprises mainly of term loan borrowings, trade payables and other
payables. The Company's financial assets comprises mainly of cash and cash equivalents, other
balances with banks , trade receivables and investments. The Company has financial risk exposure in
the form of market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The risk management policies of the Company are
monitored by the Board of Directors. The present disclosure made by the Corhpany summarises the
exposure to the financial risks

1. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market price comprises of three types of risk-currency risk,
interest risk and other price risk. The financial instruments affected by market risk includes Rupee
Term Loan and Loans and Advances.

a) Interest rate exposure

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has availed significant Rupee Term Loan at floating rate
of interest. The Company has not entered into any of the interest rate swaps and hence is exposed to
interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity Analysis

The Company considering the economic environment in which it operates has determined the interest
rate sensitivity analysis (interest exposure) at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate
liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole of the year. A 25 basis point +/- fluctuation in the
interest rate is used for disclosing the sensitivity analysis.

Impact on Profits before Tax As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
Interest rates - Increase by 25 basis points (0.85) (0.82)
- Decreased by 25 basis points 0.85 0.82

The increase / decrease in interest rate expense is mainly attributable to Company's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate of borrowings. The interest rate sensitivity analysis is done holding on
the assumption that all other variables remaining constant.

b) Foreign Currency risk exposure

The Company imports wheat, minerals, stores & spares and capital goods for which payables are
denominated by foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on these
transactions. The Company follows a conservative and sound policy by entering into simple Forward
Exchange Contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk whose maturity co-terminous with the maturity
period of foreign currency liabilities. (underlying) In respect of exports, exports are made against
advances received. Hence, the Company is not exposed to any significant foreign currency risk in
respect of its exports.

c) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market traded prices. The Company's investment in fixed deposits with banks is fixed and hence there
is no risk price movement arising to the Company. The Company's equity investments in its Subsidiaries
and Associates is for strategic purpose and not held for trading. They are carried at cost and hence are
not subject to price related risk. Other investments in equity instruments are held with a view to hold
them for long term basis and not for trading.

isclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure

e carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
bilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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As on March 31, 2023

==X | Expiring beyond one year

Liabilities Assets
Exposure gy Exposure b = overal:;h
liabili i exposure on the
Currency Gross | hedged e:(:;sl:.ltge Gross | hedged el:c?:t:;i:!?e curr:nr,y - net assets
exposure| Using | on the |exposure| U8 | onthe | (net liabilities)
derivatives currency derivatives currency
usD 0.10 0.10 -
EURO : y . ]
BDT . : . :
In INR 7.93 7.93 % = - -
As on March 31, 2022
Liabilities Assets
Exposure lia:?:;ty Exposure liar;‘ieltity ex:::u::e;:lihe
Currency Gross | hedged |oypogure| Gross | hedged |oynosure |currency - net assets
exposure| Using | op the |exposure| USiN® | on the / (net liabilities)
derivatives currency derivatives currency
USD 0.42 | 0.25 0.17 0.00° ; ; (0.17)
EURO 0.01 0.01 : ; ; (0.01)
BDT - - - 0.62 - 0.62 0.62
In INR 31.34 17.89 13.45 0.56 - 0.56 (12.89)

* Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.

2 Credit Risk

The credit risk refers to risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets as trade receivables,
bank balances, other balances with banks and other receivables. The credit risk rising from the
exposure of investing in other balances with banks and bank balances is limited and there is no
collateral held against these because the counter parties are Public sector Banks.Trade receivables
consists of a large number of customers. The Company has established a credit policy under which
every customer is analyses for credit worthiness. Major customers places advances. The Company
makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the
risk of default in payments and makes provision at each reporting period wherever outstanding is for
longer period and involves higher risk.

3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may
result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly to meet obligations when due. The Company’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of maturities of financial assets and
liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by i) maintaining adequate and sufficient cash and
cash equivalents including investments in mutual funds ii) making available the funds from realising
timely maturities of financial assets to meet obligations when due. The liquidity risk management
involves matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.

Financial arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting
period :

Details March 31, 2023

274.00

March 31, 2022
151.73

Expiring within one year

e Company makes an annual /long term financial plan so as to ensure there are no maturity mismatches
settlement of liabilities.
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49(a). Security Details of Long Term Borrowings

(i) Term loan from The ICICI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 1.70 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 2.90 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under loan.

(ii) Term loan from The HDFC Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 121.90 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 96.92 Crores) is primarily secured by the
assets purchased under the loan and personal assets of some of the Executive Directors.

(iif) Term loan from The IDBI Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 18.42 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 20.38) is primarily secured by the land and building
situated at No.133, Trichy Road, Dindigul-624005.

(iv) Term loan from The Karur Vysya Bank Limited amounting to Rs. 65.69 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 45.78 Crores) is primarily secured by the
assets purchased under the loan and equitable mortgage on Minerals land located at Dindigul.

(v) Term loan from The State Bank of India amounting to Rs. 37.10 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 17.69 Crores) is primarily secured by equitable
mortgage of the assets of the Company located at Trichy.

(vi) Term loan from Indusind Bank Ltd amounting to Rs.11.91 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 16.65 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under the loan and land at Seelapadi Village, Dindigul.

(vii) Term loan from IDFC First bank Limited amounting to Rs.24.89 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 25.66 Crores). is primarily secured by
hypothecation of the assets purchased under the loan and land at Padiyur, Dindigul.

(viii)Term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd amounting to Rs. 0.36 Crores (Including Current
maturities) outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 0.15 Crores) is primarily secured by
hypothecation of the assets purchased under the loan.

(ix) Term loan from Axis Bank Ltd amounting to Rs.5.18 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year Rs. 6.95 Crores) is primarily secured by hypothecation of
the assets purchased under the loan and land at Seelapadi Village, Dindigul.

(x)Term loan from Fullerton india Pvt Ltd amounting to Rs.3.29 Crores (Including Current maturities)
outstanding as at 31.03.2023 (Previous year NIL crores) is primarily secured by equitable mortgage on
Modern Nagar land located at Dindigul.

Note:
a) The said loans are repayable in monthly / quarterly instalments.

b) The Company does not have any continuing default as on the Balance Sheet date in the repayment of
loan or interest.

c) The loans have been guaranteed by some of the Directors of the Company in certain cases.
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Remaining
Repayment Tenure 0/S as on
5.No. Bank Loan Amt| ROl ‘;efms el | 3t0s 0
Months)
1.TERM LOANS .
1 INDUSIND 9.55 10.50% Q 3 1.10
2 ICICI 7.60 8.55% M 17 1.70
3 INDUSIND 15.00 10.50% Q 10 7.50
4 HDFC 11.50 9.95% M 70 7.82
5 HDFC 12.30 9.95% M 47 7.25
6 HDFC 36.00 9.95% M 48 21.69
7 HDFC 13.13 9.40% M 70 8.92
8 IDFC 30.00 9.60% M 20 24.89
9 HDFC 26.00 9.65% M 60 26.00
10 HDFC 9.00 9.55% M 60 9.00
11 KVB 30.00 9.35% M 108 21.00
12 KVB 13.16 9.50% M 114 10.91
13 SBI 12.00 9.75% M 35 3.86
14 SBI 10.50 9.75% M 28 4,15
15 FULLERTON 3.73 11.15% M 96 3.30
Total Term Loans 159.09
2. LOANS AGAINST PROPERTY
1 HDFC 26.00 9.05% M 25 7.99
2 HDFC 11.00 9.20% M 25 4.04
3 SBI 17.00 8.65% M 35 7.79
“ IDBI 16.00 9.65% M 109 12.08
5 IDBI 3.00 9.50% M 106 2.30
6 KVB 18.00 9.50% Q 8 5.88
7 KVB 40.00 9.50% Q 13 21.58
Total Loans Against Property 61.66
3. VEHICLE LOANS
1 HDFC 0.29 B.60% M 2 0.01
2 KOTAK 0.18 8.00% M 34 0.12
3 HDFC 1.07 8.00% M 54 0.96
4 HDFC 0.29 7.40% M 55 0.27
5 HDFC 1.47 8.50% M 2 0.01
KOTAK 0.39 7.25% M 34 0.24
Total Vehicle Loans 1.61
4, GECL LOANS
1 IDBI 3.40 9.25% M 33 2.30
2 KVB 3.15 9.25% M 34 2.23
3 HDFC 23.58 9.25% M 33 16.70
4 AXIS 7.10 7.60% M 35 5.18
= INDUSIND 4.08 9.00% M 39 3.3
S5y | KvB 5.30 | 9.25% M 36 4.09
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A
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Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

( All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

R?rmaining
Repayment enure 0/S as on
S.No. Bank Loan Amt ROI '_:;_Jms (Quarter/ 31.03.2022
Months)

7 SBI 6.69 8.65% M 37 5.00
8 |DBI 1.74 9.25% M 48 1.74
9 SBI 15.72 8.65% M 48 15.66
10 HDFC 11.79 8.40% M 48 11.24
11 SBI 1.50 B.95% M 17 0.65
Total GECL Loans 68.11
5. Unsecured Loans
1 M.M.Detergents

Company Pvt Ltd 6.23 12.00% NA NA 6.23
2 Mrs. Padmini 0.20 12.00% NA NA 0.20
Total Unsecured Loans 6.43
Grand Total 296.90

*The outstanding includes current maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No.21)
50 Retirement benefit plans
1.Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund which is defined contribution plan for qualifying employees. Under
the scheme, the company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund
the benefit. The Company recognised Rs 4.60 Cr (year ended 31.03.2022 Rs 3.20 Cr) in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in
the rules of the scheme.

2.Defined benefit plans

a) Gratuity

Gratuity to employees (funded) and Gratuity to Directors (non funded), the most recent actuarial
valuation of the plan assets and in respect gratuity to employees scheme, the present value of the
defined benefit obligation were carried out by actuarial valuation. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
projected unit cost method. The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan (Employees)
and Gratuity (Directors) of the Company and the amount recognised in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company provides the Gratuity (Employees) benefit through annual
contribution and provision is made annually for Gratuity to Directors.

As per the policy of the Company the Compensated Absence is not accumulated.

The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relating to the expected return on any
particular investment.

The Plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rate will
result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing above benefit and will thus result in an
Interest risk increase in the value of liability (as shown in financial statements). A decrease in the bond
interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will be partially offset by an
increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary
salary escalation | increase rate of plan participants in future, based on past experience. Deviatian in the rate
risk increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability

The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the
liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out adverse
compared to the assumptions.

Investment risk

\Demographic
1 Risk
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CIN : U24246TN1991PLC020409
Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless atherwise stated )

Post Employment Benefit
NS. Particulars Gratuity-Employees Gratuity-Directors
o 31.03.2023|31.03.2022|31.03.2023|31.03.2022
i Changes in Defined Benefit Obligation
Present Value-Opening Balance i.82 3.60 , 3.25 2.23
Current Service Cost 0.60 0.60 0.13 0.50
Interest Cost 0.27 0.24 - -
Past services cost - (0.05) -
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligation 0.82 (0.22) -
Benefits Paid and Charges Deducted (0.34) (0.35) # -
Present Value- Closing Balance 5.17 3.82 3.38 2.73
ii | Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets
Opening Balance 4.03 3.66 - -
Expected Return on plan assets 0.31 0.26
Actuarial Gain on plan assets 0.02 0.05
Contributions by Employer 0.80 0.41 :
Benefits Paid (0.34) (0.35)
Closing Balance 4,82 4.03 - -
iii | Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
(as at the Year end)
Fair Value of Plan Assets 4.82 4.03 - -
Present Value of Obligations 5.17 3.82 3.38 2.73
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised (0.35) 0.21 (3.38) (2.73)
iv | Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 0.60 0.60 0.13 0.50
Interest on Obligation (0.04) (0.02) -
Past service cost - (0.05) -
Expenses recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss 0.56 0.53 0.13 0.50
v | Expenses recognised in other
Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains/(losses) on plan obligation (0.82) 0.22
Difference between actual return and
interest income on plan assets 0.02 0.05 *
Net Cost in other comprehensive Income| (0.80) 0.27 - z
Asset Information - .
Insurer Managed 100.00% 100.00% NA NA
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate (%) 7.22% 7.36% 7.22% 7.36%
Rate of Increase in Salary (%) 5.00% 5.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate (%) 4.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets(%) 7.22% 7.36% NA NA
Expected average remaining life of
N employees Years 14.90 20.70 13.40 14.00

)
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{ All amounts are In Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Post Employment Benefit

Particulars Gratuity-Employees Gratuity-Directors
31.03.2023|31.03.2022| 31.03.2023 31.03.2022

No.

vi | A quantitative sensitivity analysis for
significant assumption as at 31 March is
as shown below:

Discount rate

0.5% increase 7.72% 7.86% 7.72% 7.86%
0.5% decrease 6.72% 6.86% 6.72% 6.86%
Rate of increase in salary

0.5% increase 5.50% 5.50% 10.50% 10.50%
0.5% decrease 4.50% 4.50% 9.50% 9.50%

vii| Expected contribution to the fund in
the next year

Year 1 0.32 0.11 0.11 0.09
Year 2 0.88 0.39 0.12 0.10
Year 3 0.35 0.32 0.12 0.10
Year 4 0.37 0.19 1.68 0.10
Year 5 0.63 0.24 0.08 1.41
Next 5 Years 1.90 1.45 1.73 1.50

51. Information relating to subsidaries

A. Information relating to non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Proportion of Total Other
Ownership and Comprehensive Accumulted
voting rights held allocated non-controlling
Naga of Subsidiary by non-controlling | to non-controlling interest
interest interest
March 31, | March 31,| March 31,|March 31,| March 31, |March 31,

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Naga Far East Private Limited Nil Nil Nil il Nil Nil
Naga Mills Private Limited 0.28% 0.28% . - 0.28% 0.28%
Both the Companies have been incorporated during 17-18. While Naga Far East Private Limited has
commenced its operations in the year 2018-19, Naga Mills Private Limtied is yet to commence its
operations.

Summarised financail information in respect of each of the Groups subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interest as set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

(Value represented in the table are in INR/USD/BDT)

Details

Naga Far East
Private Limited

Maga Mills Private
Limited

Year Ended March 31, 2023

Year Ended March 31, 2023

in INR in USD

in INR

in USD

Currnet assets

Non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling Interest
Revenue

Expenses (including tax)
Profit for the year
Attributable to owners of

the Company

Atributable to non-controlling
interests

Profit for the year

OC| Attributable to owners

of the Company

OC| Atributable to
non-controlling interests
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to owners of

the Company

Total Comprehensive Income
Atributable to non-controlling
interests

Total Comprehensive Income
for the year

Dividend paid to
non-controlling interest

Net cash from operating
activities

Net cash from investing
activities

Net cash from financing

.| activities

"j."' b \Net cash (outflow) / inflow

37,44,459.72 45,384.64

37,44,459.72 | 45,384.64
9,17,584.31 11,121.56

9,17,584.31 11,121.56

28,26,875.42

34,263.08

8,94,936.69 | 10,847.06
(8,94,936.69) [(10,847.06)

(8,94,936.69) | (10,847.06)

(8,94,936.69) ((10,847.06)

(8,94,936.69) |(10,847.06)

4,59,214.58 5,565.90

4,59,214.58 5,565.90

12,80,511.09
4,63,982.14
17,44,493.23
13,40,081.70

13,40,081.70

4,03,279.95
1,132.35

9,01,606.22
(9,01,606.22)

(8,99,081.72)

(2,524.50)
(9,01,606.22)

(9,01,606.22)

(27,70,309.73)

(27,70,309.73)

16,58,908.00
6,01,091.00
22,59,999.00
17,36,082.00

17,36,082.00

5,22,451.03
1,466.97

11,68,035.00

(11,68,035.00)

(11,64,764.50)

(3,270.50)
(11,68,035.00)

(11,68,035.00)

(35,88,949.00)

(35,88,949.00)
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

52. Information relating to associates

There are no associates which are individually material and thus, only aggregate information of
associates that are not individually material is given below:

Year Ended
Aggregate information of the associates March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(unaudited) (unaudited)

The group's share of profit / (loss) from continuing

operations 0.19 0.19

The group's share of other comprehensive income -
Aggregate carrying amount of the groups interest in

these associates 0.71 0.52
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year* - -
Cumulative share of profit / loss of an associate {0.30) (0.28)

53. Related party disclosures

a) List of parties having significant influence
Holding company

Investing Parties having substantial interest
Sri. K.S. Kamalakannan

Key management personnel
Smt. Mageswari Kannan

Sri. Sounder Kannan

Sri. D. Vijay Anand

Sri. 5. Ramesh

Sri. T.R.Sivaraman

Sri. V. Balamurugan

Sri. V. Marikannan

Directors

Sri. P. Arivanandam

Sri. Padmanabhan Sivaramakrishnan lyer
Sri. S. Neelakantan

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel
Smt. Lakshmi Vijayanand

Smt. Monaa Kannan

Ms. M. Jayalalitha

Sri. M. Sukumar

Sri. A.M. Gopinath

2 Sri. R. Hema Kumar

\Sri. R. Ragavendar
o

The Company does not have any holding company

Chairman and Managing Director (KMP)

Joint Managing Director

Whole Time Director

Technical Director

Director (Projects)

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary (w.e.f 16.02.2023)
Company Secretary (upto 15.02.2023)

Independent Director
Additional Director (from 14.11.2022)
Independent Director
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( All amounts are fn Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

Enterprises over which key managerial personnel are able to exercise significant influence
Nagalakshmi Charitable Trust

M.M.Detergents Company Private Limited

Kovil Cereals Pvt Ltd (Formerly known as "Kovil Agencies”)

Dinwinn Farms LLP

Mutri Snack LLP -

Sreenivasa Religious Trust

Tutifood Pvt Ltd

Lakme Investment and Finance Limited

Pluris Global Holding (India) Limited

*Confirmation Order dated 12.04.2023 for Scheme of Amalagamation of Annai Power Private Limited (Transferor
Company No.1), Magalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Transferor Company Mo.2), Dindigul Foods Park Private
Limited (Transferor Company MNo.3) with Naga Limited (Transferee Company) received from the Regional Director ,
Chennai with the appointed date of December 01,2022 (Refer Mote 54)

b) Transaction during the year

Sl, Nature of transactions As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 [March 31, 2022
1 | Annai Power Private Limited (Associate company -
April-2022 to August-2022)
Wind Power Charges paid 1.71 2.74
Rent Paid 1.09 2.40
Rental Income * 0.00 0.00
Annai Power Private Limited (Subsidairy company -
September-2022 to Nov-2022)
Wind Power Charges paid 0.64 2
Rent Paid 0.65 -
Rental Income * 0.00 -
Annai Power Private Limited (Post Merger)
Wind Power Charges paid 0.49 -
Rent Paid 0.87 -
Rental Income * 0.00 -
2 | sri. K.5. Kamalakannan
Remuneration 1.08 1.03
Rent Paid 1.12 1.12
Interest Paid * - 0.00
Dividend Paid 0.73 0.73
Wind Power Charges paid 0.04 .
Purchase of Land 1.18 -
Sale of Land & Building 3.38 -
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.41 -
Unsecured Loan - Repaid . 0.04
3 | Smt. Mageswari Kannan
Remuneration 0.90 0.90
Rent Free Accomodation - . 0.07
Interest Paid * - 0.00
Dividend Paid 0.26 0.25
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.33 &
Unsecured Loan - Repaid - 0.07
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{ Al ameunts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

A Mature of transactions As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022
4 | Sri. Sounder Kannan
Remuneration 0.96 0.91
Dividend Paid 0.14 0.14
Interest Paid * -t 0.00
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.33 -
Unsecured Loan - Repaid - 0.09
5 | Sri. D. Vijayanand
Remuneration 0.96 0.91
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.03 -
Dividend Paid 0.01 0.01
6 | Sri. 5.Ramesh
Remuneration 0.18 0.02
7 | Sri. Ramesh krishnan
Remuneration 0.09 -
8 | Sri. T.R. Sivaraman
Remuneration 0.23 0.13
9 | Sri. V. Marikannan
Remuneration 0.16 0.13
10| Sri. V. Balamurugan
Remuneration 0.02
11| Smt. Lakshmi Vijay Anand
Salary 0.46 0.38
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.19 -
Dividend Paid 0.09 0.09
12| Smt. Monaa Kannan
Salary 0.33 0.25
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.03 .
Dividend Paid 0.01 0.01
13| Ms. M. Jayalalitha
Salary 0.46 0.38
Dividend Paid * 0.01 0.01
14! Sri. M. Sukumar
Salary 0.34 0.27
Dividend Paid . 0.01
15| Sri. A.M.Gopinath (Prop. Anugraha International)
Commission Paid 0.08 0.14
16| Sri. R, Hemakumar
Salary 0.04
17| sri. R. Ragavendar
Salary 0.02 -
18 | Naga Mills Limited
Rental Income * - 0.00
19| Dinwinn Farms LLP
Purchase of Agri Product - . 0.01
Freight Income Received * - 0.00
Kovil agencies
v Sale of Wheat - 0.13
by Sale of Minerals - 0.08
=( CHENNAJ Rental Income * 0.00 0.00
=\
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{ All amounts are in Crores of INR, unless otherwise stated )

St Nature of transactions As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 |March 31, 2022
21| Kovil cereals private limited
Rental Income * 0.00 -
22| Naga Marine Industries Limited
Purchases A 207.05
Rent Paid - 0.16
Rental Income * . 0.00
Dividend Paid . 0.04
Freight Income Received - 0.30
23| Nagalakshmi Charitable Trust
Sale of Wheat Products - 0.02
Donation Paid 0.17 0.16
Medical Camp Charges Paid 0.06 0.05

24| Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited
(Associate company -April-2022 to August-2022)

Freight Charges Paid 0.23 0.54
Wind Power Charges paid 0.42 0.76
Rental Income * 0.00 0.00

Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Subsidairy company|
- September-2022 to Nov-2022)

Freight Charges Paid 0.14 -
Wind Power Charges paid 0.20 -
Investment 3.00 -
Rental Income * 0.00
Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Post Merger)
Freight Charges Paid 0.18 -
Wind Power Charges paid 0.20 -
Rental Income * 0.00
25| M.M.Detergents Company Private Limited
Purchases 404.21 146.92
Rental Income * 1.54 0.00
Rent Paid 0.31 0.10
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.85 -
Sale of Land . 0.20
Dividend Paid 0.16 0.12
Freight Income Received 3.20 0.29
26| Pluris Global Holding (India) Limited
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.13 -
27 | Lakme Investment and Finance Limited
Purchase of Equity Shares 0.13
28 | Nutri Snack LLP
Purchase 0.01 -
Service Charges Paid 0.06 §
Purchase of Assets 0.01 -

Notes
. Post employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis and hence not separately
rovided.
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(c) Balances at the end of the year:

Sl. As at As at
Nat ft ti
No. rs B HRmeens March 31, 2023 [March 31, 2022
1 Sri. K.5. Kamalakannan
Unsecured Loans -t -
Remuneration payable 0.05 0.05

2 | Smt. Mageswari Kannan
Unsecured Loans ‘ s
Remuneration payable 0.03 0.05

3 Sri. Sounder Kannan
Unsecured Loans . .

Remuneration payable 0.05 0.05

4 | Sri. D, Vijay Anand
Remuneration payable 0.06 0.07

5 | Sri. S. Ramesh
Remuneration payable 0.01 0.01

6 | M.M. Detergents Company Private Limited

Advance Paid - 6.69
Rent Receivable - -
Trade Receivable 0.32 -
Trade Payable 7.58 0.05

7 | Nagalakshmi Charitable Trust
Trade Receivable * - 0.00

8 Dinwinn Farms LLP
Trade Receivable . 0.01

*Values are shown as zero due to rounded off being lesser value.
Note : The transactions which arose exclusively on account of the merger are not shown here as the
company has not entered into such transactions. Hence those are not reported in AOC 2 also.
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54. Scheme of Merger

Description of Scheme of Amalgamation of Naga Limited (Transferee Company) and Annai Power Private
Limited (Transferor Company No.1), Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited (Transferor Company No.2),
Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited (Transferor Company No.3) and with the approved of its
respective Shareholders and Creditors.

During the current year, the transferee company has made additional investnfent in the transferor
companies and holds 100% shares of the said transferer companies. Additional investment by transferee
company during the year of which details are as follows:

(i) Annai Power Private Limited - Rs.1.78 Crores
(i) Nagalakshmi Energy Private limited - Rs.3.07 Crores
(iif) Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited - Rs.0.57 Crores

The Regional Director, Chennai, on April 12, 2023, sanctioned the Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme”)
between Annai Power Private Limited (Transferor Company No.1), Nagalakshmi Energy Private Limited
(Transferor Company No.2), Dindigul Foods Park Private Limited (Transferor Company No.3) with Naga
Limited (Transferee Company) approved by their respective Shareholders and Creditors for the merger
of the Company. Both companies have filed the certified copies of the RD Order sanctioning the
Scheme on 27.04.2023, with the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu. Pursuant to the Scheme becoming
effective, the entire undertaking and business of transferor companies would be transferred and vested
with and into the Naga Limited.

As per the clarification issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Circular no.09/2019 dated August
21, 2019 (MCA Circular), the Company has recognized the effect of the merger on December 01, 2022,
and made the following adjustments, pursuant to the Scheme.

(i) All the assets and liabilities of the transferor comapnies have been transferred to Naga Limited
(Transferee company).

(ii)Difference between the value of transferred assets and liabilities pertaining to the transferor
company amounting to Rs.2.65 Crores have been adjusted to the reserves.

The Impact of the Merger on these financial statements is as under:

The whole of the assets and liabilities of transferer companies became the assets and liabilities of
transferee company

Particulars As at November 30, 2022
Assets Nagalakshmi |Dindigul Foods
Assets Transferred Energy Private| Park Private
Transferred .

Limited Limited

Property, Plant and equipment 18.03 3.13 0.78
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 1.00 "
Trade receivables - 0.08 -
Cash and cash equivalents 0.04 0.04 0.01
Current tax assets (net) * 0.00 0.00 . -
Other current assets 0.04 0.06 -
:=:?§&:tal Assets transferred to Naga Limited (A) 18.11 4.31 0.80

L&
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Particulars As at November 30, 2022
p— Nagalakshmi |Dindigul Foods
Liabilities Transferred Energy Private| Park Private
Transferred .

Limited Limited
Long Term Borrowings 9.61 0.09
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 0.17 4 i
Short Term Borrowings 5.31 3.97 0.24
Trade payables 0.20 0.01 -
Other financial liabilities * 0.05 0.02 0.00
Total Liabilities transferred to Naga Limited (B) 15.34 4.09 0.24

Adjustment to Reserve

As per Para 14 of the Order, the difference between the book value of the assets and liabilities
transferred to the Naga Limited ( net of investment) has been debited to the Capital Reserves of the
Company on the Appointed date i.e December 01, 2022

Nagalakshmi | Dindigul Foods
Assets
Particulars S Energy Private| Park Private
Limited Limited
Total Assets transferred to Naga Limited (A) 18.11 4,31 0.80
Total Liabilities transferred to Naga Limited (B) 15.34 4,09 0.24
Investment by Naga Limited (C) 2.40 3.10 0.70
Adjustment to Reserve (A-B-C) 0.37 (2.88) (0.14)

55. Details of Benami Property :

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the company for holding any Benami property.

56. Reconciliation of quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed with banks or financial
institutions:

Quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with banks consisting of inventory ( excluding
goods in transit) and trade receivables aged less than 90 days are in agreement with the books of
account.

57. Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Act, 1956:

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

58. Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other
—tender during the current period. ! ‘
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59. Utilisation of borrowed funds and securities premium

(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or .

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall:

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

60. Details of Crypte Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial
year.

61. Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961).

62. Expenditure on Scientific Research eligible

As at As at
Nature March 31, March 31,

2023 2022
a) Revenue
Employee Benefit Expenses 1.67 0.90
Equipment Maintenace 0.06 0.14
Consumables 0.57 0.37
Travelling Expenses 0.15 0.02
Freight & Handling 0.02 0.01
Professional Charges 0.21 0.03
Other Expenses 0.10 0.1
b) Capital Expenditure 3.05 26.76
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63. Note on Social Security Code 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (the Code') relating to employee benefits, during the employment
and post-employment, has received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been
published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft
rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are
applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial
statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the
financial impact are published.

64. Approval of Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
26th May, 2023.
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